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Highlights

“Although your Company in common with most funds with an
income bias did not this year meet its capital objective, it has, over
the last three years as a whole, achieved a total return of dividends
recewved and share price growth of 38 8% — this compares to 31.3%
for the benchmark index and 1s greater than any other of its AIC UK
Growth and Income peer group “

Scott Dobbie

Performance
Capital growth
Net asset value (“NAV") — debt at par 14 8%
NAY - debt at market value 155%
Share price 16 2%
FTSE All Share Index 10 8%
Dividend growth
Dividends for the year 19 90 pence’ +5.6%
Retall Pnice Index +3 8%

Total return (capital growth with income reinvested)
NAV - debt at par 11 7%
NAYV — debt at market value 12 3%
Share price 12 6%
FTSE All Share Index 77%

1 Dmdends paid and recommended in respect of the financial year

Objectives and Investment Policy

The Company invests n UK secunties with the long term objective of achieving

1 an increase of the Net Asset Value per share by more than the growth in the FTSE All Share index, and

2 growth in dividends per share by more than the rate of UK inflation

The Company will generally nvest only in companies quoted on a recognised stock exchange in the UK or in
those which are about to enter the FTSE All Share Index The portfoiio is selected by the Manager on the basis of
ts assessment of the fundamental value available in individual securities Whiist the Company's overall exposure
1o individual securities 1s monitored carefully by the Board, the portfolio s net primardy structured on the basis

of industry weightings The secunities of no one company, as determined at the time of acquisition, may represent
more than 10% of the market value of the Company’s equity portfolic Similarly, the Company wili not hold more
than 5% of the 1ssued share capital {or voting shares) in any one company Investment in converubles is subject

to normal security fimits Should these or any other mit be exceeded by subsequent market movement, each

resulting positian 15 specifically reviewed by the Board

The Company borrows money to provide gearing to the equity portfolio up to a maximum of £200 milhen

Use of denvative instruments 1s permittec within the following constraints and 1s monrtored carefully by the Board
The writing of covered calls, to a maximum of 10% of the vaiue of the portfolio, 1s permitted and a maximurn of
15% may be invested in FTSE 100 futures Other denvative contracts may be employed subject to an aggregate

of the above mits and to the prior approval of the Board
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Financial Summary

31 March 31 March %
2008 2007 change
Capttal return
NAV (debt at par) 474 74p 557 47p 148
NAV (debt at market value} 448 53p 530 90p 155
FTSE All Share Index 292705 328321 108
Share pnce 40325p  4B100p 162
Income
First intenm dividend paid in November 475p 4 40p
Second interm dividend paid in February 475p 4 40p
Third intenm dividend pad in May 475p 4 40p
Final dnadend proposed for the year 565p 565p
Total dividends proposed for the year 19 90p 1885p  +56
Revenue return per share 2141p 18 13p' +181
Discount?
Where borrowngs are deducted at par value 151% 137%
Where borrowings are deducted at market value 10 1% 9 4%
Gearing
Actual geanng ratio? 129% 14 3%
Maximum potential geanng ratio? 212% 16 6%
Total expense ratio’
As % of average shareholders’ funds 040% 042%
|Vear to 31 March 2008 High Low

NAV (debt at par) 580 5p 436 0p
Share pnce 514 5p 3820p
Dnscount {debt at par) 15 1% 110%

1 Revenue return lower than total dwdends as it 1s based on weighted average of shares in 1ssue over the year
2 Difference between share price and NAV per share

3 Actual gearng bormowings less cash and investment in Fidelity Institutional Cash Fund plc ~ sharehalders’ funds

4 Potential gearing borrowings  shareholders' funds

5 Operating expenses {excluding interest) hased on average dally shareholders’ funds

Standardised performance on a total return basis

Year to Year to Year to Year to Year to

31 March 04 31 March 05 31 March G6 31 March07 31 March 08
NAV (debt at par) +338% +16 2% +27 9% +120% 11 7%
NAV (debt at market value} +37 7% +17 7% +28 2% +138% 12 3%
Share price +36 2% +14 7% +35 3% +17 4% 12 6%

Sources Fidehty and Datastream
Past performance 1s not a guide to future returns
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Chairman’s Statement

THE UK EQUITY MARKET

The UK equity market has been highly volatle in the
12 months to 31 March 2008 as it reacted to the national
and international effects of the credit crunch Over the
year as a whole, the FTSE All Share index (“the Index”)
fell by 10 8%, with parucular weakness in banking,
bullding and consumer stocks as nvestor concerns
spread from financial sectors to the broader economy
On the other hand, the mining and o1l exploration
sectors continued to perform well in response to the
continued strong growth in commodity prices

CAPITAL AND SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE
This was a difficult year for income funds and the
Company’s net asset value {"NAV”) fell by 14 8% (debt
atpar) or 15 5% {debt at market), significantly more than
the 10 8% fall in the benchmark Index The Company's
portfolio was overweight banks which underperformed
strongly but pay substanual dwidends, and underweight
mining groups which yield Ittle Full detalls of the
portfolio performance are contained in the Business
Review later in this report it is noteworthy that although
failing to meet 1ts first objective — that NAV growth
should exceed that of the Index — the Company’s NAV
performance has been no worse than average {rank 7th}
in the peer group of 12 trusts in the AIC UK Growth

and Income sector (Source Fund Data 12 months to

31 March 2008)

The Company's share price declined by 16 2% - this fal
was greater than the benchmark Index and more than
the fall In NAY, reflecting an increase over the year in the
discount to NAY The relative fall in share price over the
year was disappeinting, particularly given the Company’s
strong price performance in the previous two years
Despite the recent setback, shareholder returns over the
past three years have been good Total return — the sum
of growth in share price and dividends received in the
three years — 1s 38 8% of the base price at 1 Apn! 2005
This compares to 31 3% for the benchmark Index, and 15
greater than any of the 11 other trusts in the peer group
already defined

During the year, the Company bought back 17 2m
shares, enhancing the NAV for remaining holders

The Board believes 1t to be essential to have power 1
continue the programme In appropriate creumstances,
and will seek authority from shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting

INCOME PERFORMANCE

Shareholders wili recall that dividends increased by a
total of 43% over the two years ending 31 March 2007
The mcrease was due bath to increasing payouts by
underlying investments and to a change in portfolio
emphasis towards higher yielding securities In my
statemnent last year, | counselled that holders could
expect a much lower rate of growth in future, since the

portfolio change was one off, and dividend growth
generally was expected to slow Both trends have been
apparent in the year under review Sharcholders have
recewved three intenm dividends each of 4 75p per share
a final didend of 5 65p per share 1s recommended
Total dividends, 19 9p per share, are therefore 5 6%
higher than in the previous year this Increase (s greater
than the increase In RPI in the equivalent period and
the Company’s second objective — to grow dwidends
per share by more than UK inflation — has therefore
been achieved

Subject to shareholder approval at the 2008 Annual
General Meeting the proposed final dividend of 5 65
pence per share will be paid on 22 July 2008 to
shareholders on the Company's register on & June
2008 (ex-dividend date 4 June 2008)

PORTFOLIO STRUCTURE

The portfolio can be geared by investing all or part of
the two long term debenture stocks, of £200m book
value, in equities | reported at the intenm stage that
about 0% of the debenture stocks were invested In
the equity market — equivalent to an actual gearing
ratio of 9 7% Having reduced gearnng earlier in the
financial year, it was increased in January when it was
felt that market fundamentals had improved At the
year end, the actual gearing ratio was 12 9%, this
compared with 14 3% at 31 March 2007 The
performance attnbution shown on page 14
demonstrates that geanng n a falling market was
detrimental to the year’s capital performance

| described in my statement last year that the Company's
funds are allocated by Fidelity to two portfolio managers
- one brased to holdings expected to Increase dividends
by more than the market average and the other with

a stronger current :ncome orentation The first has
continued to perform well and has offset some of the
weakness i the funds allocated to the higher Income
portfolio The latter, even allowing for the difficult market
conditions, already described, has not met expectations
and the Board and Fidelity are working to improve the
capital performance of this part of the portfolic whilst
continuing to meet the Company’s Income cbjective

VAT ON MANAGEMENT FEES

| reported at the Interm stage the rulng by the
European Court of Justice that Her Majesty’s Revenue
and Customs had been wrong in levying VAT on
management fees borne by investment trusts Initially

1t was befieved that recovery could be made of some

at least of the tax paid since 2001 A subsequent legal
deciston means that this potential repayment will be
extended to a periad of about five years from 1990 The
Company 15 no longer paying VAT on management fees
and 1s currently negotiating recovery of VAT paid since
2002 to s Manager, Fidelity Investments International,
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Chairman’s Statement

and to Aberdeen Asset Managers, successors to its
previous manager, Edinburgh Fund Managers It 1s not
yet possible to estumate the scale of funds to be rebated
and no provision for therr recespt has been made in these
financial statements Shareholders should be aware that
any funds receved will be allocated to Income and
capital in the praportions in which the anignal charges
were appled

QUTLOOK

The hquidity enists which first became apparent in the
US sub-prime loans business about nine months ago
continued to erode confidence n financial markets
There are now strong signs of increasing inflation, a
reduction in the rate of growth of the globai economy,
and reduced expectations of growth n corporate
earnings Against this background, fixed interest
securities, particularly corporate bonds, have fallen
sharply in value, whilst equrty markets, although volatile,
have reacted to a much lesser extent The resiience of
equity markets can be justified, in good part, by ratings
which are undemanding relative to histonc norms, or to
alternative asset classes Your Board believes that whilst
there 1s some nsk of decline in equity values, there 1s
good potential for upward movement when the market
sees a return to confidence The current cautious
approach Is to remain only partly geared

A reduction in market earnings s likely to be followed

by caution in dividend payments by the corporate sector,
and your Board foresees a fali in the rate of growth in
the dividends paid on the Company’s own investments
We are nevertheless at this stage confident that the
Company can next year increase 1ts own duvidends by

at least the rate of nflatien and hence continue to mest
1ts income objective

Scott Dobbie
Chairman
29 May 2008
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Corporate Information

Registered Office
Quartermile One, 15 Launston Place
Edinburgh EH3 9EP

Manager and Secretary

Fidelity Investments International
Beech Gate

Millfietd Lane

Lower Kingswaood

Tadworth

Surrey KT20 6RP

Telephone 01732 361144
Fax 01737 836892

Website www fidelrty co uk/its

Registrars

Equiniti Limited

PO Box 28448
Finance House
Orchard Brae
Edinburgh EH4 1WQ

Telephone 0871 384 2431
Fax 0871 384 2100

Website www shareview co uk

Bankers and Custodian
JPMargan Chase Bank, N A

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc
Salire Court

20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh EH1 2EG

Company Brokers
Dresdner Kleinwart
UBS Limited

Company Registration Number
SC 1836
Incorporated 1 March 1889

Scott Dobbie
CHAIRMAN

Scott Dobbiet CBE (68)
was appointed to the
Board in 1998 and
became Chatrman n

2003 He joined Wood

Mackenzie & Co in 1971
and worked with this and successor companies
before retinng In 1999 He 1s the charman of
the Securities & Investment Institute and
Standard Life European Private Equrty Trust
and a Commssioner of the Jersey Financial
Services Commission He 1s also an adwviser
to Deutsche Bank

Richard Barfield
DIRECTCR

Richard Barfield? {61) was
appeinted to the Board

in 2001 and 1s Senior
Independent Director

He was previcusly Chief
investment Manager at
Standard Lfe He 1s a director of The Baillie Gifford
Japan Trust, The Merchants Trust, The JPMorgan
Fleming Overseas Investment Trust, the Standard
Life Property Income Trust and 1s a member of the
Professional Oversight Board

Page 6 The Edinburgh Investment Trust ple Annual Report 2008



Board of Directors

Jim Pettigrew
DIRECTOR

Jim Pettigrew? (49)

was appeinted to the
Board on 27 QOctober
2005 and 1s Chairman

of the Audit Committee
He qualified as a
Chartered Accountant in Dundee, has a

law degree from Aberdeen University and a post
graduate diploma in accountancy from Glasgow
University He 1s also a member of the Association
of Corporate Treasurers Following a number of
finance function posttions n Scotland and in
Londor ncluding Group Treasurer of Sedgwick
Group ple, he was Group Finance Director, ICAP
pic, a FTSE 100 company and the world’s largest
specialist inter dealer broker from January 1999 to
June 2006 He was Chief Operating and Financial
Officer of Ashmore Group plc from 2006 to 2007
and was appointed Chief Executive Officer of
CMC Markets pic in 2007

Nicola Ralston
DIRECTOR

Willam Samuel
DIRECTOR

William Samuel (56) was
appointed to the Board
in 2003 He s currently
a vice charrman of Lazard

in London having formerly
been vice charrman of
European Investment Banking at Citigroup,
charrman of HP Bulmer Holdings and Group
Managing Director - Investment Bank at Schroders
and a director of Schroders PLC He 15 also
chairman of Galiform, deputy chairman and senior
independent director of Inchcape plc and a non
executive director of the Ecclesiastical Insurance
Office He joined Schroders Investment
Management Department in 1977 having qualified
as 2 Chartered Accountant and was Head of
Investment Banking when Schroders sold its
investment banking business to Salamon, Smith,
Barney, part of Citigroup n 2000

Nicola Ralston? (52} was
appointed to the Board
m 2003 She started her
financial career n 1977
mowving to Schroders n
1979 Between 1999 and
2001 she was Head of Investment Management
for the Schroder Group After leaving Schroders,
she worked with a management consulting firm
and was a Director of several hedge funds She
was then Head of Globa! Consulting at Hewitt
from 2005 to 2006 In 2007 she joned Liability
Solutions, a hedge fund marketing and consulting
firm, as a Director She 15 also a Governor of the
CFA Institute

Sir Nigel Wicks
DIRECTOR

Sir Nigel Wicks?, GCB,
CVO, CBE {67) was
appointed to the Board in
2005 After working for The

British Petroleum Company,
Sir Nigel joined HM
Treasury 1n 1968 He worked for Pnime Ministers
Harold Whison, James Callaghan and Margaret
Thatcher He has been the United Kingdom’s
Executive Director at the International Monetary
Fund and World Bank and the Prime Mimisters
representative {“Sherpa”) for the Economic
Summits of the Group of Seven Industrialised
Natians From 1989 to 2000, he was the Treasury's
Second Permanent Secretary responsible for
international financial matters The Prime Minister
appainted him as Chair of the Commitiee on
Standards in Public Life for the period March

2001 1o April 2004 He s Chawman of Euroclear
plc and a Commussioner of the Jersey Financial
Services Commission

1 Member of the Management Engagement and Nomination Committees only
2 Mermnber of the Audit, Management Engagement and Nomination Committees
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Directors’ Report

BUSINESS AND STATUS

The Company carries on business as an mvestment trust
HM Revenue & Customs has approved the Company's
status as an investment trust under Section 842 of the
Income and Corporation Taxes Act ("ICTA") 1988 for
the years ended 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2007,
although this approval may be subject to review should
there be any subsequent enguiry under Corporation
Tax Self Assessment In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company has subsequently conducted 1ts affars
so as to enable It to continue to obtain such approval

The Company 15 not a close company and has no
employees It s registered as an investment company
as defined in Section 266 of the Companies Act 1985
and operates as such

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

During the year the Company followed the normal
activities of an investment trust Details of these are given
in the Chairman’s Statement and the Business Review

COMPANY'S MANAGER

The Manager, Fidelity Investments International, a
subsidiary of FIL Limited {formerly Fidelty Internationa
Limited), provides management, accounting,
administrative and secretarial services to the Company
under an agreement effective from 1 August 2002
Further details of this agreement are given in the
Corporate Governance Statement on page 25

The Manager also provides certain services, including
marketing and adm:nistration, In connection with the
Fidelity Investment Trust Share Plan and the Fidelity
Indwidual Savings Account under the same agreement

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Business Review 1s contained on pages 11
to 15 and 1s included in the report by reference
in accordance with the requirements of Section
234778 of the Companies Act 1985

COMMISSIONS AND INTERFUNDING

Fidelity has adopted a broker segmentation policy
which has reduced the number of brokers used and
allows 1t to concentrate on those brokers who, in its
opinion, offer the best service in terms of overall
execution These brokers are Fidelity’s "core” brokers
At the same time, the Manager evaluates the research
provided by other brokers and uses some of them for
their research These brokers are called Secondary
State Research firms (“SSRs")

As a consequence of the policy, the “core” brokers
earn a larger amount of the commission paid These
“core” brokers pay away some of the increased
commussion earned to the S5Rs, to compensate them
for the research provided to Fidelity Under FSA

regulations this type of payment from one broker

to another 1s currently treated as “softing” The
Manager's soft commission policy complies with the UK
regulations Fidelity adopts a best execution policy that
apples to all transactions n all mstruments, regardiess
of the fund or account or location of the trading desk

The Manager has an arrangement with certain brokers
whereby a portion of commissions from secunty
transactions may be repaid to the Company to reduce
transaction costs Amounts received by the Company
under this arrangement are credited to caprtal in the
year to 31 March 2008 £118,000 was receved (2007
£355,000)

The Company participates in the Manager's interfund
programme whereby Fidelity’s traders, on occasion,
identify stuations where one fund managed by Fidelity
1s buying the same secunty that another fund 1s selling
If a trader can confirm that it would be in the interests
of both accounts to execute a transaction between
them rather than in the market then an mterfund
transaction 18 executed at the market price

There 15 a regulatory requirement on the Manager to
obtain best execution and no individua! deal 1s entered
into which prevents compliance with this requirement

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Company has not made any pohtical or charitable
donations in the year (2007 nil)

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s authonsed share capital comprises
316,099,929 ordinary shares of 25 pence each As at

31 March 2008 198,294,748 (2007 215,496,748) shares
were In 1ssue Each share in 1ssue carnes one vote
Deadlines for the exercise of voting nghts in respect of
this year’s Annual General Meeting are detalled in the
Notas to the Notice of Meeting on pages 50 and 51

Pursuant to the authority granted at the 2006 Annual
General Meeting, 10,392,000 shares were repurchased
for cancelfation between 1 Apnl 2007 and 16 July 2007
At the Annual General Meeting held on 17 July 2007
the Company's shareholders passed a special resolution
which granted the Directors authonity to purchase up to
14 99% of the ordinary shares in 1ssue for cancellation
Pursuant to this authonty during the period 17 July
2007 and 31 March 2008 a further 6,810,000 ordinary
shares of 25 pence each were repurchased for
cancellation In aggregate for the year ended 31

March 2008 the total number of shares repurchased

for cancellation was 17,202,000 (representing 8 0%

of the 1ssued share capital as at 31 March 2007) (2007
18,449,966 shares) The total cost of these shares was
£83,492,000 (2007 £80,571,000) Since the year end

a further 2,096,000 shares have been repurchased
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Directors’ Report

The principat purpose of share buybacks 1s to enhance
the net asset value for remaining shareholders
Additionally, they address the smbalance between

the supply and demana for the Company’s ordmary
shares and thereby reduce both the scale and volatlity
of the discount at which the shares trade in relation to
the underlying net asset value Purchases wili only be
made If they enhance the net asset value for the
remaining shareholders

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend that a final dividend of 5 65p
(2007 same} per share be pad on 22 July 2008 to
shareholders on the register at the close of business on
& June 2008 (ex-dvidend date 4 June 2008} If approved
by shareholders this will result in a total dividend of

19 90p per share for the year ended 31 March 2008
{2007 18 85p) The Company has a policy of paying
three intenm awidends and a final dividend each year

DIRECTORS

Details of the Directors who served in the year ended
31 March 2008 are set out on pages 6 and 7 with

a brief desenption of their careers, each of which
indicates their qualifications for Board membership
All Directors served throughout the year The Chairman
was first appointed to the Board more than nine years
ago and 1n line with the AIC Code retires and offers
himself for re election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting Pursuant to the Company's Articles
of Association, Sir Nigel Wicks and Mr Barfield retire
by rotation and offer themselves for re election at the
Annual General Meeting

The names of the Directors and their holdings in the
Company's shares are shawn below

No contract or arrangement existed dunng the year

in which any of the Directors had a material interest

No Director had a service contract with the Company
There have been no related party transactions requinng
disclosure under Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS”} 8

Information on the appomntment, re election and
replacement of Directors 1s included on pages 21

to 23 of the Corporate Governance Statement Any
amendments to the Company's Articles of Association
must be made by special resolution

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

In addition to the benefits enjoyed under the Manager’s
global Directers and Officers’ insurance arrangements,
the Company maintained insurance cover for its
Drrectors and Officers under its own policy as permitted
by the Companies Act 2006 {previously section 309A
of the Companies Act 1985 (as amended))

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Full details are given in the Corporate Governance
Statement on pages 21 to 25

PAYMENTS POLICY

The Company's pnincipat supphier 1s the Manager who
i1s paid monthly 1n accordance with the terms of the
Management Agreement, detadls of which may be
found on page 25 of the Corporate Governance
Statement The Company’s payments palicy for the year
to 31 March 2009 (2008 same) I1s to ensure settlement
of suppliers’ invoices In accordance with the stated
terms In certain crcumstances, settlement terms are
agreed prior to business taking place

Ordinary shares heldat  Ordinary shares held at Change dunng

31 March 2008 31 March 2007 Nature of interest the year

Richard Barfield 13,984 13,984 Beneficial n/a
Scott Dobbie’ 128,266 124,675 Beneficial Increase In holding
of 3,591 shares due to

dividend reinvestment

422,416 422,416 Non beneficial n/a

Jim Pettigrew 20,000 Beneficial Purchase of
20,000 shares

Nicola Ralston 15,000 15,000 Beneficial n/a
wWillram Samuel 23,170 23,170 Beneficial n/a
Sir Nigel Wicks 3,500 3,500 Beneficial n/a

Directors and ther holdings m the Company

1 Non beneficiat interest largely arising as a result of Mr Dobbie s membership of the Board of Trustees of the Cambrnidge
Endowment for Research in Finance Since the year end Mr Dobbie s beneficial helding has increased by 955 shares following a

reinvestment of dvidend
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Directors’ Report

No of ordinary

Holder shares

AXA Group 13,871,256 707 Dhrect and indirect holding for clients

Standard Life Investments 10,100,131 515 Direct holding on own account and indirect
holding for chents

Rensburg Sheppards 10,070,444 513 Indirect holding for clents

Lloyds TSB Group plc 9,587,200 489 Includes a matenal interest of 9,184,799 (4 68%)
held by Scottish Widows Investment Partnership
Limited the balance being shares held by nominee
company subsidiaries of Lioyds TSB Group plc

Tattersall Advisory Group 8,943,568 456 Indirect holding for clients

Prudential plc 8,351,839 426 Direct holding on own account for group

Legal & General Group plc 8,309,075 424 Direct holding for chents

Substantial share interests

SUBSTANTIAL SHARE INTERESTS

At 2% May 2008 the Company had been advised of
the interests (held directly and indirectly} in 3% or
more of the voting nghts of the Company as shown
in the table above

AUDITORS

The Directors who held office at the date of approval
of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there Is no relevant audit information of
which the Company’s Auditors are unaware, and each
Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Director to make themseives aware of any
relevant audrt informat:on and to establish that the
Company's Auditors are aware of that information

Resolutions wilt be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting for the re appointment of KPMG Audit Ple
as Auditors of the Company and to authorse the
Directors to determtne their remuneration

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
10 be held on 21 July 2008 1s set out on page 50 It
includes twa items of special business as set out in the
Notice and in the Appendix to this report on pages 52
and 53 The resolutions relating to these tems will be
proposed as special resolutions

Special Business
Authority to purchase shares

Resclution 9 will be proposed to renew the Company's
authonty to make market purchases of its own shares
The maximurm number of ordinary shares which may be

purchased pursuant to the authonty shall be 14 99%
of the 1ssued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the passing of the resolution The minimurm
price which may be paid for an ordinary share shall be
25p The maximum price for an erdinary share {exclusive
of expenses) shall be an amount equal to 105% of
the average of the middle market quotations for the
Company's ordinary shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of purchase This
authority, if conferred, will be exercised only if to do
50 would enhance the net asset value per share and

15 1n the best interests of shareholders generally

Amendments to the Company’s
Articles of Association

Resolution 10 will be proposed to ensure that the
Company’s Articles of Association are compliant with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
other recent regulatory updates and to allow the use
of @ communications if needed n the future Further
details may be found in the Appendix te this report on
pages 52 and 53

The Directors recommend that shareholders vote
in favour of these resclutions The full text of each
resolution 1s set out in the Notice of Meeting
contained an page 50

Hetreceal Butaiured

Fidelity Investments International
Secretary
29 May 2008
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Business Review

INTRODUCTION

The Board has required the Manager to prepare this
Business Review in accordance with the requirements
of Section 234778 of the Companies Act 1985 and

it forms part of the Directors’ Report Its function 1s to
provide a balanced and comprehensive review of the
Company’s performance and development during the
year and Its posiion at the year end The review also
covers the principal risks and uncertaintres faced by
the Company and sets out key performance indicators
used to measure, monitor and manage the Company's
business The law requires the Company’s Auditors

to report on whether the information given in the
Directors’ Report and Business Review 15 consistent
with the financial statements The Auditors’ opinion

i1s included in their report on page 29

MARKET BACKGROUND

The UK stockmarket declined over the review penod,
mainly due to the fallout of the turmoil in the sub
prime mortgage market and the resultant credit
crunch Additionally, there were increasing fears
about an economic slowdown, especially aver the
latter half of the review period, as the housing market
and consumer related sectors witnessed further signs
of deceleration Nevertheless, takeover activity and
strong commodity prices provided some support

At the end of the review period to 31 March 2008
the FTSE Alj Share Index returned 7 7% (on a total
return basis)

At the sector level, investors stayed away from financial
stocks armid a severe liquidity squeeze 1n the banking
system, which led to the natonalisation of Northern
Rock Despite measures by the government to ease
the credit market conditrons, banking stocks fell on
concerns of further write downs and the consequent
stress on their capttal struetures Consumer firms such
as Marks & Spencer and Next also suffered from the
weakening in personal spending The cuts in the Bank
of England base rate were not passed on by the banks,
leading to refatively igher borrowing costs This also
had an impact on property stocks, as ganerally tighter
tending conditions led to lower demand for homes

On a positive note, energy shares benefited from nising
ol prices amid projections for increased demand for
ol Metal prices also remained high on centinued
Asian demand and takeover actvty further supported
mining shares Corporate mergers and acquisitions
continued, with Rio Tinto buying the US company
Alcan and BHP Billiton making an offer for Rio Tinto

However, funding for deals largely dried up by the
first quarter of 2008 and a potential bid {for Xstrata
did not matenalise Overall, In view of the higher
market volatility, investors preferred defensive
stocks and this was reflected in the outperformance
of large companies over their smaif and mid sized
counterparts

In 2007, UK GDP grew at a rate of 3 0% compared to
2 9% n 2006 However, in hght of the credit market
enisis economic growth projections weakened and
prompted the Bank of England to cut nterest rates
twice during the perod to the current level of 5 25%
These decisions reversed two previous rate Increases,
when policy makers were more concerned by the level
of inflation, which stood at an above target leve! of

2 5% in March

The outlock for stock prices remains uncertain in
view of the weak projections for global GDP growth,
particularly in the US Takeover activity continues to
be supportive while the recent downturn in markets
has apered up selective buying opportunities The
FTSE All Share Index is currently trading at a twelve
month forward price to earnings ratio, which 1s below
its historical average However, stock valuations will
depend on eamings growth remaining resiient

PORTFOLIO REVIEW

For the twelve months to the end of March 2008,

on a total return basis, the net asset value per share
dechined by 11 7%, the return on the FTSE All Share
Index being a 7 7% negative Over a three year penod
the Company’s net asset value has underperformed
the Index, nsing by 26 7% against a benchmark return
of 31 3% (on a total return basis} However, over the
last three years as a whole the Company has achieved
a total return of dividends received and share price
growth of 38 8% — greater than any other of its AIC
UK Grawth and Income peer group While stocks with
higher dividend yield have generally performed well
over many decades, the last few years have witnessed
a penod where stocks with lower yields, such as in
the mining sector, have done well Conversely, stocks
such as banks and telecoms, which generate good
dividends, have underperformed the benchmark

In meeting our objective to provide growth tn the
dividends the Company pays, we have had to forego
some of the capital appreciation seen in the market
We believe that this approach will achieve the best
results in the long term

The Edinburgh Investment Trust ple Annual Report 2008
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Business Review

The portfolic was managed dunng the year using

a multi manager approach, with the Company's
assets split between two Fidelity portfolio managers
The two portfoiic managers were selected because
of therr complementary investment styles Fidelity 15
a stock picking investment house and each portfolio
manager constructs his portfolio using a bottom up
approach, where attractive companies are wdentified
first and the portfolio 15 constructed to reflect

these choices

As at 31 March 2008, the Company's key overweight
sector positions resulung from stock selection were in
support services, tabacco and oil & gas producers
The Company's key underweight positions were in
mining, beverages and food producers

At 31 March 2008
Portfolic Index

% %
FTSE 100 772 839
FTSE 250 197 132
FTSE Small Cap 25 29
Other 06 0o
1003 1000

Size analysis of the UK equity portfolio
index 15 the FTSE All Share Index

The underweight positien in the mining sector was the
most significant detractor from portfolio returns, as
takeover talks buoyed stocks such as Rio Tinto and
Xstrata, while ligher metal prices provided further
support Meanwhile, our full weighting in the banking
sector proved detrimental, due to concerns about
substantial write-downs on their investments and
slower lending growth

The averweight position in bullding materials supplier
Wolseley also proved detnmental, as the outlook for
earnings suffered due to a weak US dollar and the
downturn in the US housing market

Among medha stocks, the holding in Yel! Group,
a publisher of directories, also detracted from
performance, there are concerns that reduced
adverusing revenues could inhibit its future
cash flows

On a positive note, the overweight position in mobile
telecommunications leader, Vodafone, contnbuted to
portfolio returns The company’s cost cutting iniatives
and market share gains in hugh growth emerging
economies have offset revenue ercsion in Europe

Investors also welcomed its decision to keep the stake
in its US joint venture, Verizone Wireless, considered
to be an attractive asset

The tobacco sector was again a major contributor to
returns, as its defensive qualities were rewarded in

an uncertain market environment Within the sector,
Impenal Tobacco announced robust growth in profits
for the fiscal year 2007, underpinned by an i/mproving
market share Aerospace & defence companies also
provided good returns, with BAE Systems benefiing
from strong earnings growth in the first half of 2007

PURCHASES

The holdings in Royal Dutch Shell were increased as

the company has good long term ail reserves and 1s
benefiting from the continued strength in the o1l price
The porfolio managers also added to BAE Systems,

as the company continues to win major long term
government contracts in the aerospace sector Other
key purchases ncluded Anglo American, the mining
company, and AstraZeneca, in the pharmaceutical sector

SALES

Holdings in Vodafone were tnmmed after a period

of strong share price performance, although it remains
a core holding Similarly, the portfolio managers sold
shares in BT, as the company faces a competitive
environment that will require higher capital spending
Other holdings that were decreased included National
Gnid, BHP Billiton, HSBC and Royal Bank of Scotland

PORTFOLIO AS AT 31 MARCH 2008

The full portfolio as at 31 March 2008 1s detailed on
pages 48 and 49 and the distiibution of assets a3 at
31 March 2008 may be found on pages 17 and 18

GROWTH/INCOME SPLIT

The Investment management fee and relevant finance
costs are allocated between revenue and caprtal in
line with the Board's expectation of returns from the
Company's (nvestments over the long term n the form
of revenue and capital respectively Since Apnl 2000,
the Company has allocated 70% of management fee
and debenture interest to capital and 30% to revenue
costs The Board keeps this policy under annual review
and, having examined consensus forecasts of capital
return and dividend payments, sees no need to
change the existing policy at this time

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board 15 ulimately responsible for control systems
nsk but the day to day operatien and monitonng s
delegated to the Manager
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Business Review

Market risk

The uncertainty over future equity market price
movements 1s an inherent part of the rationale for the
Company's existence The Company's objectives and
the means of attaining them are reviewed annually

The Company's portfolio conssts of a mix of assets and
securities that may display high levels of volatity from
time to time n response to economic and other market
forces The Board recetves the Manager's performance
report against this background on a monthly basis and
reviews It at each Board meeting

Performance risk

The Board sets nsk parameters and performance
objectives and 1 delegates the investment management
process to the Manager The achievement of the
Cormnpany’s performance objectives relative to the
market requires active management of the portfalio

of assets and secunties Strategy, asset allocation and
stock selection decisions by the Manager might lead

to underperformance of the benchmark index and
income targets

Investment selection 1s delegated to the Manager
The Manager manages the portfolio and the Board
sets overall nsk parameters, without specifying asset
allocation, monitoring performance in that context

Performance information is provided to the Board
on a monthly basis as part of the Board papers
Specific nformation provided inchides benchmark
and performance objectives, performance attribution,
rolling three year performance, contnbutors and
detractors, major everweights and underweights,
largest holdings, size and sector analysis, active
money and active holdings The Manager s
responsible for actively monitoring the portfolio
selected in accordance with the asset allocation
parameters and seeks to ensure that indvidual
stocks meet an acceptable nsk reward profile A
review of performance nisk and how 1t relates to
the Company’s objectives 15 undertaken annually

Gearing risk

The Company has the ability to nvest up to £200 mdlion
of Debenture Stocks n the equity market The princepal
gearing risk 1s that the level of gearing may have an
aclverse impact on performance Secondary risks refate
to whether the cost of gearing 1s too high and whether
the length of gearng s approprate

Information related to geanng 1s provided to the Board
on a monthly basis as part of the Board papers In order
to manage the leve! of gearing the Board regularly

considers this item and sets gearing parameters or hmits
from time to time  The Manager follows these and can
invest part of the debenture funds in Fidelty Inst:tutional
Cash Fund ple ("ICF”) and short term cash deposits to
contral the level of net gearng Addrionally, the Board
regularly reviews the cost of buying back debt against
the outlock for equity markets

Incorme/dividend risk

The Company Is subject to the risk that income
generation from its investments falls to meet the
level of income required to meet its objectives

The Board montors this nisk through the receipt of
detalled monthly income forecasts and comparison of
receipts against forecast These are contained within
the Board papers The Board considers the level of
Income at each meeting

Share price risk

There 15 a nsk that the Company's prospacts and NAV
may not be fully reflected in the share price from time
to time

The share price 1s monitored on a dally basis The
Board 15 empowered to repurchase shares within
agreed parameters The discount at which the shares
trade to NAV can be influenced by share repurchases
The Company has in the last year repurchased shares
within parameters set by the Board and subject to
shareholder authonty

Control systems risk

In addition to delegating internal controls, the Board
also delegates a number of specific activities to the
Manager including

* Custody and secunty of the Company's assets

* Financial controls

» Best practice standards in fund management
operations

¢ Meeting regulatory requirements

Consequently in respect of these activities the Company
is dependent on the Manager's control systems and
those of its Custodian and Regstrars, both of which are
monitored and managed by the Manager in the context
of safeguarding the Company's assets and interests
There 15 a nisk that the Manager fails to ensure that these
conirols are performed in a sausfactory manner

The Edinburgh Investment Trust ple Annual Report 2008
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Business Review

A nsk based programme of nternal audits 1s carned
out by the Manager regularly to test the controls
environment An internal controls report providing an
assessment of these risks is prepared by the Manager
and considered by the Audit Committee, and 1s
formally reported to and considered by the Board

Other risks

The Company may be exposed to other business and
strategic nsks m the future, including fiscal, legal or
regulatory changes

The Board also periodically reviews the investment of
the Company's cash positions in the ICF, to ensure
liquidity and concentration nsks are adequatefy
managed and that the ICF 1s assessed for suitability
against other similar investment options

There 15 an ongoing process for the Board to consider
these other nsks In addition, the composition of the
Board 1s regularly reviewed to ensure the membership
offers sufficient knowledge and expernence to assess
and anticipate these risks, as far as possible

KEY PERFORMANCE [NDICATORS
The key performance indicators (“KPls"} used to

at each meeting Indices and ratios as referred to in
the KPI table which assist in managing performance
and comphance are regularly reviewed Expenses are
reviewed at each Board meeting enabling the Board,
amongst other things, to review costs and consider
any expenditure outside that of its normal operations
Apart from the KPIs set out above the Board also
regularly reviews the performance of the Company
against its peer group of eleven mvestment trusts with
investment objectives, policies and benchrmarks similar
to the Company's

The principal nisks and uncertainties section above
includes descriptions of performance indicators and
their monitorng and management which are key to the
business of the Company Long term performance 1s
also monitored and the Long Term Record charts on
pages 19 and 20 show this information

Attribution Analysis

The attribution analysis below enables the
contributions from varous sources of income
and cost to be determined

Year to 31 March 2008

%
determine the progress and performance of the
Company over time and which are comparable to those Change in NAV nz
reported by other investment trusts are set out below Change in FTSE All Share index 77
Relative Return 40
Year to 31 March 2008 2007| Iantnbutlon to Relative Return Year to 31 March 2008
Net asset value (debt at par)’ 117% +120% UK Equities 27
Net asset value (debt at market} 123% +138% Debenture Borrowings
Share price? 12 6%  +17 4% — Net gearing 10
FTSE Al Share Index? 77% +111% — Debenture interest 95
Share Buybacks +9
Discount to NAV (debt at par)' 151% 137%
Futures & options 03
Discount to NAV (debt at market)' 10 1% 9 4% Charges 0a
Revenue return per share 2141p  1813p Total 20
Actual gearing ratio 129% 14 3% All figures are calculated on a total return basis
Total expense ratio 040% 0 42% Sources Fidelty and Datastream

All figures are calculated on a total return basis
Past performance 15 not a guide to future returns

1 Calculated in accordance with AIC guidelines
2 Calculated on a mid to mid basis
3 Source Datastream

Notwithstanding that some KPis are beyond its control
they are measures of the Company's absolute and
relative performance and the Board monitors them

Past performance 1s not a guide to future returns

Investments were valued at £1,064,645,000 as at

31 March 2008 Shareholders’ funds amounted to
£945,038,000 resuiting 1n a net asset value per share of
474 74p Changes to investments are shown in Note ¢
to the financial statements on pages 38 and 39
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Business Review

SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

The Manager's primary objective 1s to produce supenor
financial returns to investors It believes that high
standards of corporate sociat responsibilty ("CSR”) make
good business sense and have the potential to protect
and enhance nvestment returns Consequently, its
Investment process takes social, environmental and
ethical 1ssues 1nto account when, in its view, these have

a matenal impact on erther investrnent nsk or return

The Manager recognises and supports the view that
social, environmental and ethical best practice should
be encouraged as long as the potential for financial
return 1s not reduced It favours companies committed
to high standards of CSR and to the principles of
sustainable development

The Manager does not set out to manage an

"sthical (nvestment portfolic” and does not screen

out companies from Its INvestment universe purely on
the grounds of poor social, envirenmental or subjective
ethical performance Instead it adopts a positive
engagement approach whereby 1t discusses sociai,
environmental and ethical matters with the management
with the aim of Improving procedures and attitudes The
Manager believes that this 1s the most effective way to
imgrove the attitude of business towards CSR and the
Board endorses this approach

The Edinburgh Investment Trust ple Annual Report 2008  Page 15



Thirty Largest Investments ..:: vu: 2000

Company Market Value Sector
£000

BP 76,630 Ol & Gas Producers

Royal Dutch Shell 'B' 62,445 Cil & Gas Producers
Vodafone 53,055 Mobile Telecommunications

HSBC 50,123 Banks

Royal Bank of Scotland 39,926 Banks
Impenal Tobacco 32,373 Tobacco

British Amencan Tobacco 32,338 Tobacco
AstraZeneca 30,243 Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology
Nationai Gnd Transco 29,162 Gas, Water & Mulu utilities

Legal & General 27,425 Life Assurance
Ten largest investments 433,720 38 0% (2007 43 29%) of total assets less current kabiliies
BG Group 24,591 Onl & Gas Producers
Tesco 24,533 Food & Drug Retailers
Anglo American 22,965 Mining
GlaxaSmithKline 22197 Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnotogy

Royal Dutch Shelt ‘A’ 21,114 Ol & Gas Producers
Aviva 19,048 Life Assurance

BHP Billiton 18,402 Mining

BAE Systems 15,948 Aerospace & Defence
Man Group 15,741 General Financial
Scottish & Southern Energy 15,622 Electncity
Twenty largest investments 633,881 55 5% (2007 A1 39%) of 1otal assets less current iabilies
HBOS 15,554 Banks

Reed Elsevier 14,926 Media

GKN 14,687 Autormobiles & Parts

Srmuths Group 13,899 Genera!l Industrials

Standard Chartered 13,866 Banks

Prudential 12,328 Life Assurance

Capita Group 10,522 Support Services

BT 10,512 Fixed Line Telecommunications

Hays 10,301 Support Services
Wolseley 10,118 Support Services
Thirty largest investments 760,594 66 6% (2007 71 B9) of total assets less current abliues
Cther equity investments

represented by 69 holdings 304,051
Total investments 1,064,645 93 3% (2007 98 1) of toral assets less current habalities
Net current assets 76,749
Total assets less current hakilities 1,141,394 100 0%

A full hst of investments by sector 1s given on pages 48 and 49
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Distribution of Assets ..:: vow 20

FTSE All Share

Distnbution of Assets Index Weightings

2008 2007 2008

% % %

Ol & Gas Onl & Gas Producers 165 140 162
Ol Equipment, Services & Distribution - - 05

165 140 167

Basic Materials Chemicals Q& 04 04
Forestry & Paper 01 - 01

Industrial Metals & Mining - - 01

Mining 39 21 to9

44 25 15

Industrials Construction & Materials - - 04
Aerospace & Defence 33 51 20

General Industrials 19 13 0b

Electronic & Electrical Equipment 06 11 04

Industrial Engineering 14 08 06

Industnial Transportation - - 02

Support Services 69 68 30

141 151 72

Consumer Goods Automabiles & Parts 13 08 01
Beverages - 05 29

Food Producers 05 06 27

Household Geods 06 10 19

Personal Goods - - 02

Tobacco 57 51 26

81 80 104

Health Care Health Care Equipment & Services 02 04 05
Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnology 53 41 59

55 45 64

Consumer Services Food & Drug Retallers 26 21 27
General Retallers 22 26 17

Media 50 51 29

Travel & Leisure 17 28 26

115 126 99

Telecommunications Fixed Line Telecommunications 1C 18 14
Mabile Telecommunications 47 60 51

57 78 65

Utilmies Electncity 18 08 17
Gas, Water & Mult utiities 33 66 26

51 74 43

Financials Banks 13 164 146
Non life Insurance 04 o9 08

Life Assurance 52 40 37

Real Estate 06 01 21

General Financial 34 43 22

Equity Investrnent Instruments - - 28

211 257 262

Technology Software & Computer Services 08 05 07
Technology Hardware & Equipment 03 - 02

11 05 09

Total mvestments 933 981 1000
Net current assets 67 19 -
Total assets less current habilities 1000 1000 100 0
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Distribution of Assets

Investments by sector as a % of total assets fess current habilives

Analysis of Shareholders

Percentage of ordinary shares hefd by shareholders at 31 March 2008
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Long Term Record

Total assets Crdinary Per ordinary share at 31 March % expenses | Actual | Potential

s | SEE |k [T o] 5 [ oo | e |
P P P P

1998 1,846 8 1,651 3 55¢¢ 1448 1140 5005 106 04 64 121
1999 1,8384 16426 5570 1171 1185 4645 166 ca 19 123
2000 1,8313 16369 6183 215 1215 5345 136 05 122 123
2001 15769 1,3733 5140 1207 1245 4755 121 05 19 14 6
2002 13964 12016 4847 1250 1275 4225 128 05 111 167
2003 8764 6813 2786 1105 1315 2310 171 05 190 294
2004 1,079 0 8834 3620 1226 1315 3005 170 04 134 226
2005 1,198 7 1,003 1 4171 1236 1315 3298 209 04 103 199
2006 14105 12146 5174 1528 1525 4295 170 04 114 165
2007 1,401 3 1,205 2 5575 1813 1885 4810 137 04 143 166
2008 1,141 4 9450 4747 2141 1990 4033 151 04 129 212

Notes 1 Ofthe 11 85p dwidend for 1999, 3 B0p was pa:d as 3 foreign ncome dividend
2 2005 numbers have been restated following the changes in the amount of equity shareholders’ funds arsing from

changes to UK GAAP
Shares have been bought back and cancelled as follows

Number of shares Cost

Year to 31 March bought back £000

2000 29,978,827 151,762

2001 10,978,930 56,102

2002 6,040,000 28,125

2003 4,025,000 11,935

2004 il nfa

2005 3,350,000 9,7G3

2006 5,500,000 21,758

2007 18,449,966 80,571

2008 17,202,000 83,492

Companson of Net Dividend Growth of The Edinburgh Investment Trust ple
to Underlying Inflation (figures rebased to 10Q)

Sources AIC and Datastream

Past performance 1s not a guide to future returns
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Long Term Record

Comparison of NAY and Share Price Total Return Performance of The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc
relative to the FTSE All Share Index (figures rebased to 100)

Sources AIC and Datastream

Share Price discount to NAY of The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc

Sources AIC and Datastream

Past performance 1s not a guide to future returns
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Company 1s comritted to high standards of
corporate governance The Board has accordingly put
in place a framework for corporate governance, which it
believes 1s appropriate for an investment trust company

AIC CODE

The Board has cons:dered the principles and
recommendations of the Association of Investment
Companies' AlIC Code of Corporate Governance
{"the AIC Code"} by reference to the AIC Corporate
Governance Guide ("the AIC Guide”) The AIC Code,
as explained in the AIC Guide, addresses all the
principles set out i Section 1 of the Combined

Code as well as sething out additional principles and
recommendations on 1ssues that are of specific
relevance to the Company The Board considers that
reporting against the principles and recommendations
of the AIC Code, and by reference to the AIC Guide
{which incorporates the Combxned Code), will provide
better information to shareholders

The Board 1s accountable to the Company's
shareholders for good governance and considers that
the Company has complied with the recommendations
of the AIC Code and therefore has met its obligations
in relation to the Combined Code and associated
disclosure requirernents of the Lisuing Rules except

as set out below

While the Investment Management Agreement spiits
out the duties of the Board and the Manager, the
Company does not operate with the Manager in the rofe
of Chief Executive Officer A senior Fidelity manager
has, however, been apponted to co ordinate Fidelity's
executive responsibilities and there are, as a matter of
course, regular high fevel discussions between the
Board and semior employees representing different
functions within Fidelity

DIRECTORS

The Board has overall responsibiity for the Company’s
affairs !t delegates, through an investment
management agreement and through specific
instructions the day to day management of the
Company to the Manager, Fidelity Investments
international The Company has no executives or
amployees There s a formal schedule of matters
reserved for the Board which includes, among other
things, decisions on gearing, Board appomntments,
appointment of the Company Secretary, strategy,
Company structure and nsk management strategy

The Board presently consists of six non executive
Directors, one of whom s Charrman Scott Dobbie
was appointed as a Director on 20 April 1998 and
Chairman in July 2003 He has therefore served for
more than nine years and s subject to annual re
election As detailed m the AIC Guide, whilst the

boards of Investment compames are ikely to benefit
from a regular infusion of “new blood”, they are
perhaps more likely than most to benefit from having
at least one director with considerably longer than nine
years' experience When considering the Charman’s
independence it should be noted that the Company
changed its Manager in 2002

All of the Directors are considered by the Board to be
independent of management and free from any business
or other relationship which could materially interfere

with the exercise of their ndependent judgement The
independent Directors form the membership of the
Audtt Committee, the Nomination Commuttee and the
Management Engagement Committee The requirement
in the Company’s Articles of Association for Directors

to retire at the AGM after their 70th birthday 15 being
amended to conform with changes to the law The
Board does not limit the time a Director may serve

Biographies of the Directars wha served in the year
te 31 March 2008 appear on pages 6 and 7 of this
report The Directors believe that the Board has 2
balance of skills, experience, ages and length of
service which enables it to provide effective strategic
leadership and proper governance of the Company
The Senior Independent Director 15 Richard Barfield

The Board usually meets at least nine tmes each
year There 1s an annual cycle of Board meetings which
i1s designed to address, n a systematic way, overall
strategy, objectives, review of investment policy,
investrnent performance, marketing achievements,
promotional material, budgets, dividend policy,
gearing, asset allocation, peer group information,
industry issues, share price perfarmance, share
buybacks, share price discount, the shareholder
profile of the Company and communication with
shareholders Additionally, Board Committees and
sub groups meet to pursue matters referred from the
Board as a whole and the Chairman meets the other
Directors regularly without representatives of the
Manager being present The Board considers that

it meets sufficiently regularly to discharge its duties
effectively and the table on page 22 gives the
attendance record for the formal Board and
Committee meetings held in the year

The Company Secretary 1s a corporate secretary The
appointment of the Company Secretary s @ matter for
the Board as a whole The Directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary through
its appointed representative who is responsible to the
Board for ensuring that Board procedures are followed
and that applicable rules and regulations are complied
with Each of the Directors of the Company 15 entitled
to take independent professional advice, at the
Company's expense, In the furtherance of their duties
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Corporate Governance Statement

Changes to the Board

All appointments to the Board and replacements of
Directors take place in accordance with the Companies
Act and the Company's Articles of Association

The Nomination Committee cons:sts of all the
Directors and 1s chaired by Scott Dobbie The
Committee meets on an annual basis and at such other
times as may be required The Committee has wntten
terms of reference and 15 responsible, among other
things, for identfying and nomnating, for the approval
of the Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies taking
Into account the need to maintain a balanced Board
Care 1s taken to ensure that appaintees have enough
time to devote to the job External consultants are also
used to identify potental candidates The Committee
also considers whether Directors should be
recommended for re election by sharehalders

The Nomination Committee's written terms of
reference are available on the Company's website
at www Itseit co uk

Letters of appomtment, which speafy the terms

of appointment, are 1ssued to new Directors on
appontment and include details of the time commitment
required and expected duration of appointment The
terms and condtions of appointment of Directors are
avallable for inspection at the registered office of the
Company and wil! be available prior to the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting

A Directer appointed during the year is required to
retire and seek election by shareholders at the next
Annual General Meeting The Articles also require that
one third of the Directors retire by rotation each year
and seek re election at the Annual General Meeting
and also that every Director submit lumself or herself
for re election at least every three years Subject

to these requirements for re election, Directors’
continued service 1§ at the discretion of the Board

Due to his length of tenure, Scott Dobbe retres and
being eligible offers himself for re election at the
Annual General Meeting The Board has endorsed
his candidature and commends his re election to
shareholders as he has mantained his independence,
effectiveness as a Director and as Chairman, and
continues to demonstrate his commitment to the
Company In accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association, Sir Nigel Wicks and Richard Barfield
retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re election at the Annual General Meeting The
Board endorses therr candidature and commends
their re election to shareholders

Traiming

When a new Director 1s appointed to the Board, he

or she 1s provided with all relevant information regarding
the Company and his or her duties and responsibilities
as a Drrector In addition, a new Director will also

spend some time with representatives of the Manager
whereby he or she will become familiar with the vanous
processes which the Manager considers necessary

for the performance of its duties and responsibiliues

to the Company The Company's policy 1s to encourage
Dhrectors to keep up to date and attend training
courses on matters which are direetly relevant to their
involvement with the Company, a number of such
courses were attended in the year under review Thus
training 1s tallored to the needs of indivdual Directors
and, in add:tion, the Company organises an annual
offsiie meeting at which the Directors consider a variety
of topics which are relevant to the Company and assists
the Directors i updating their skills and knowledge
The Directors also receive regular briefings from,
among others, the AIC, the Auditors and the Company
Secretary regarding any proposed developments or
changes in law or regulations that could affect the
Company and/or the Directors

Board Audit Nomination Management
Meetings Committee Commitiee Engagement
Meetings Meetings Committee
Meetings
Richard Barfield 99 3/3 111 11
Scott Dobbie’ 9/9 3/3 11 11
Jim Pettigrew 8/9 3/3 1/1 /1
Nicola Raiston /9 3/3 1M1 1/1
William Samuel U9 3/3 /1 1/1
Sir Nige! Wicks 99 3/3 171 141

Attendance at meetings

1 The Chairman 1s nat a member of the Audit Commuttee but was in attendance at the Audit Committee meetings
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Corporate Governance Statement

Directors’ remuneration

The leve! of Directors' fees 1s determined by the
whole Board, although Directors do not vote on their
own fees, and therefore a separate Remuneration
Committee has not been appointed Drrectors’ fees are
disclosed fully in the annual report (see the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 27 and 28) Levels of
fees are considered to be competitive and sufficient
to attract and retain the standard of Directors needed
to manage the Company successfully The fimit on
aggregate fees Is governed by the Company’s Articles
of Association

Shareholdings by Directors are encouraged and the
Directors’ share interests are disclosed in the Directors’
Report on page 9

Evaluation

An evaluation of the Board, its Committees and of
indwidual members was conducted dunng the tast
quarter of the financial year This took the form of
self and peer group assessment by Guestionnaire
followed by discussions between the Charman and
the Directors The Charman’s performance was
assessed by a meeting, chared by the Senior
Independent Director, of all the other Directors

A formal evaluation 1s completed annually

Supply and agenda of information

The Chairman 1s responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive accurate, tmely and clear informaton
The Board receves in due tme information n a farm
and of a quality appropriate to enable 1t to discharge

its duties The Board meeting papers are the key source
of regular information for the Board, the contents

of which are determined by the Board and contain
sufficient nformation on the financial condition of the
Company Key representatives of the Manager attend
each Board meeting, enabling the Board to probe
further on matters of concern or seek clanfication on
certain issues The Board has delegated its corporate
governance responsibilities to the Audit, Management
Engagement and Nomination Committees, membership
of which 1s set out on pages & and 7

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Directors place great importance on
communication with the Company's shareholders
The Manager carnes out a programme of regular
dialogue and individual meetings with nstitutional
shareholders Dunng the year the Chairman, the
Senior Independent Director and other Directors also
met representatives of those major shareholders who
had accepted an mnvitation from the Chairman to meet
Written reports of all such meetings are circulated

to all Directors This ensures that all Directors have
an understanding of the views of major shareholders

At the Annual General Meeting all shareholders have
the opportunity to put questions to the Board and a
presantation from the Manager covers the investment
performarnice and strategy dunng the financial year and
the outlook for the year ahead The Board hopes that
as many shareholders as possible will be able to attend
the meeting

All proxy votes are counted and, except where a poll 1s
catled, the details of the level of proxies lodged for each
resolution, the balance for and against the resolution
and the number of votes withheld wili be available after
it has been dealt with on a show of hands

The notice of meeting on page 50 sets out the business
of the Annual General Meeting A separate resolution 1s
proposed on each substantially separate 1ssue including
the annual report and financial statements

The notice of the Annual General Meeting and related
papers are sent to shareholders at least 20 working
days before the meeting

The Charrman of the Board, the Nomination
Committee and the Management Engagement
Committee, Scott Dobbre, and the Chairman of the
Audrt Committee, Jim Pettigrew, will be available to
answer questions at the Annual General Meeting

The Chairman and the Senior Independent Director may
be contacted erther through the Company Secretary or
care of the Company's registered office at Quartermile
One, 15 Launston Place, Edinburgh EH3 9EP

The Company does not have continuation votes

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

An Audit Committee has been established which 1s
chaired by Jim Pettigrew, consisting of all the Directors
with the exception of Scott Dobbie The qualfications
of the members of the Audit Committee are included in
therr brographies on pages 6 and 7 The Board has
taken note of the suggestion that at least one member
of the Audit Commutiee should have recent and relevant
financial expenence and 1s satisfied that the Audit
Commuttee 15 properly constituted in this respect

The Committee meets at least three times a year
and its authority and duties are clearly defined in its
written terms of reference which are available on the
Company's website www tseit o uk These duties
melude discussing with the external Auditors the
nature and scope of the audit and reviewing the
external Auditors” quality contro! procedures,
considering the scope of work undertaken by the
Manager's mternal audht department, reviewing the
Company s procedures for detecting fraud, monitoring
the integrity of the financial statements of the
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Company, reviewing the half yearly and annual
financial statements of the Company prior to their
submission to the Board, and reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control systems (including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management) They aiso include responsibriity for
reviewing and monitoning the effectiveness of the
audtt process and the external Auditors’ independence
and objectivity with particular regard to the provision
of non audit services The provision of non audit
services is also subject to pnor Board approval The
Audit Committee of the Board meets the external
Auditars in the absence of representatives from the
Manager at least once a year to review these and
other appropnate matters Shareholders have the
opportunity at each Annual General Meeting to vote
on the re appontment of the external Auditors for
the forthcoming year and to authorise the Directors
to determine the level of Auditors’ remuneration

The Committee also reviews corporate governance
issues, the existence and performance of all controls
operating in the Company (including the adherence
to Sectron 842 status), the relationship with and the
performance of third party service providers {such

as the registrars and custodians}

The respective responsibilities of the Directors and
the external Auditors In connection with the financial
statements appear on pages 26 and 29

In the year to 31 March 2008 the Audit Committee
discharged its responsibilities by, among other things

o Reviewing the Company's draft annual and half
yearly financial statements prior to Board approval
and reviewing the external Auditors’ reports thereon

+ Rewviewing the appropnateness of the Company’s
accounting policies

* Reviewing the potential impact of any new
Financial Reporting Standards

» Reviewing and approving the audit fee and
reviewing any non audrt fees payable to the
Company's external Auditors

e Reviewmng the external Auditors’ terms
of engagement

+ Reviewng the external Auditors' plan for the audit
of the Company's financial statements

« Reviewing the external Audrtors’ quatity
control procedures

» Reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the
external audit process and the external Auditors’
independence and objectivity

» Considering the scope of work undertaken by the
Manager’s internal audit department

+ Reviewing a semi annual report on internal controls
and reporting to the Board as described opposite

* Recommending the re appointment of the
external Auditors

The Board s responsible for the Company's system of
internal control and for reviewing 1ts effectiveness Such
a system 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate
the nsk of fallure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matertal misstatement or loss

The Board confirms that there 15 an ongoing process
for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Company's principal business and operational nsks,
that 1t has been in place for the year ended 31 March
2008 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and financial statements, that it 1s regularly
reviewed by the Board and accords with the FRC's
Internal Control Revised Guidance, and has been in
place for the year ended 31 March 2008

The Manager 1s responsible for the design,
imglementation and maintenance of controls and
procedures to safeguard the assets of the Company
and to manage ts affairs properly The system extends
to operational and compliance controls and nisk
management Clear lines of accountability have been
established between the Board and the Manager and
regular reports on controls and compliance 1ssues are
provided to the Audit Committee In carrying out its
review, the Audit Committee has had regard to the
activities of the Manager, the Manager’s comphance
and nsk functions and the external Auditors The Audit
Committee’s review also includes censideraton of
internal controls and simifar reports 1ssued by the
Manager and other service providers

The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit
function The Board has decided that the systems and
procedures employed by the Manager, including its
internal audit function and the work carred out by
the Company’s external Auditors, provide sufficient
assurance that a sound system of internal control,
which safeguards shareholders’ investment and the
Company's assets, I mantained An internal audit
function, specific to the Company, 1s therefore
considered unnecessary The Audit Committee meets
with the Manager's Head of Internal Audit on an annual
basis without other representatives from the Manager
being present The Chairman of the Audit Committee
has direct access to the Manager's Head of Internal
Audrt and vice versa

Whistle blowing procedure

Part of the Manager's role in ensuring the provision

of a good service pursuant to the Management
Agreement includes the ability for employees of
Fidelity to raise concerns through a workplace concerns
escalation policy (or “whistie blowing procedure”}
Fidehty 1s committed to providing the highest level of
service to its cusiomers and to applying the highest
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standards of qualrty, honesty, Integnity and probity
The aim of the policy Is to encourage employees and
others working for Fidelity to assist the Company in
tackling fraud, corruption and other malpractice within
the orgarisation and n setting standards of ethical
conduct This policy 1s noted accordingly

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
An mvestment management agreement {the
“Management Agreement”) dated 19 July 2002

was made between the Company and Fidelity
Investments tnternational (“Fidelity”), under which
Fidelity has agreed to provide mvestment management,
administrative and secretarial services to the Company
for a fee of an amount equal to 0 26 per cent per
annum of the Value of Funds under Management (as
defined In the Management Agreement, which excludes
investments in other funds managed by the Manager)
payable monthly and calculated as of the last day

of the preceding calendar month to which it relates
The Management Agreement will continue unless

and until terminated by edther party giving to the other
not less than three months’ notice The Management
Agreement may also be terminated forthwith as a
result of a material breach of the agreement or on

the insolvency, liguidation {other than for the purpose
of an amalgamation or reconstruction approved by
the Board) of Fidehty In addition, the Company

may terminate the Management Agreement without
compensation In the two months following a change
of control of Fidelity

MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Management Engagement Committee which
was estabhished in January 2004 with written

terms of reference meets at least once a year The
Committee’s terms of reference are available at the
Company'’s registered office and on the Company’s
website www rtsert co uk The Committee consists
of all the Directors and 1s chaired by Scott Dobbre

In conducting its annual review of the Investment
management and secretanal arangements,

the Commuttee considers, among other things,
mvestment performance, marketing performance,
the performance of the Company’s Secretaniat, the
Finance and Control environment, Compliance and
Audit and the terms of the Management Agreement

Following the most recent review, the Board, upen
the recommendation of the Commuttee, 1s of the
opinion that the continued appointment of Fidelity
Investments International as investment Manager and
Secretary, on the terms agreed in the Management
Agreement, 15 In the interests of the shareholders

as a whole and the Company

CORPQRATE ACTIVISM AND RESPONSIBILITY
AS AN INSTITUTIONAL SHAREHOLDER

The Board believes that the Company should, where
appropriate, take an active interest in the affairs of the
companies in which 1t invests and that 1s should exercise
its voting nghts at ther general meetings Unless there
are any particularly controversial issues (which are then
referred to the Board) 1t delegates the responsibility for
corporate activism and shareholder voting to Fidelity
These actvities are reviewed annually

The Board has affirmed the Manager's Principles of
Ownership in relation to the Company's nvestments
These principies include the pursuit of an active
investment policy through portfolio management
decisions, voting on resolutions at general meetings
and mantaining a continuing dialogue with the
management of investee companies In its Principles
of Ownership the Manager expressly declares that
supports the Statement of Principles drawn up by the
Institutional Shareholders Commuttee setting out the
responsioilives of stitunonal shareholders and agents

The Manager instructs proxy voting on behaif of the
Company in accordance with the Manager's existing
guidelnes and policies

GOING CONCERN

The Directors believe that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements

Scott Dobbie
Chairman
29 May 2008

W‘“"“"ﬁ-
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual
report and the financial statements m accordance with
apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year Under
that law they have elected to prepare the financial
statements (n accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice

The financial statements are required by law to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the profit or loss for that pened

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are
required to

s select sutable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it 1s inapproprate to presume
that the Company will continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and to enable them to ensure that its
financial statements comply with the Companies

Capital Gains Tax Information

Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other rregularities

Under apphcable law and regulations the Directors

are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report
including a Business Review, a Directors’ Remuneration
Report and a Corporate Governance Statement that
comply with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance

and integrity of the carporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website www itsert co uk
Legislation n the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other Junsdictions

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge the
financ:al statements, prepared n accorclance with the
applicable set of accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, habilties, financial position
and profit or loss of the Company, and the Directors’
Report includes a farr review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the
Company together with a description of the principal
nsks and uncertamnties it faces

Approved by the Board on 29 May 2008 and signed
on its behalf by

Scott Dobbie
Chairman

A@W

.

The market value of an ordinary share in the Company
an 31 March 1982 was 58 49p The pnce does not
apply to shares held in Scottish United Investors plc at
31 March 1982 which were subsequently acquired by
the Company
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

This report has been prepared by the Board of
Directors in accordance with the requirements of
Chapter 6 of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2008 An ordinary resolution for
the approval of this report will be put to the members
at the forthcoming Annua! General Meeting

REMUNERATION POLICY

The whale Board, which 1s comprised solely of non
executive Directors, acts as a remuneration commitiee
as and when required to consider the level of the fees
payable to Directors The Board's policy 1s that the
level of remuneration of non executive Directors
should be far and sufficient to attract and retain the
Directors needed to oversee properly the Company
and to reflect the specific aircumstances of the
Company, the duties and responsibilities of the
Directors and the value and amount of time committed
to the Company's affarrs It 15 intended that this

policy will continue for the year ending 31 March

2009 and subsequent years The Company’s Articles
of Association imit the total fees payable to Directors
to £250,000 per annum Non executive Directors are
not eligible for any performance related fees, bonuses,
pension benefits, share options, long term incentive
schemes or other benefits

Since 1 Apnl 2007 Dhrectors’ fees have been
Chairman £44,000 per annum, Senior Independent
Director £27,500 per annum, Chairman of the Audit
Committee £27,000 per annum and the remaining
Directors £24,200 per annum Ne increases to
Directors’ fees are proposed to take effect for

the financial year ending 31 March 2009

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

It 15 the Board's policy that Directors do not have
service contracts, but new Directors are prowided

with a letter of appointment The letter of appointment
orovides that Directors should retire and be subject to
election at the first Annual General Meeting after their
appointment Thereafter Directors are obliged to retire
by rotation, and offer themselves for re electon by
shareholders at least every three years after that There
15 no notice penod and no provision for compensation
upon early termination of appointment

All Directors are subject to reurement by rotation

and their continued service 18 subject to the provisions
of the Companies Act Any Director may be removed
at any time by the unanimous resolution of the other
members of the Board The Articles provide for
retirement at least every three years

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The graph below compares the Company’s net asset
value and share price performance (on a total return
basis) over the last five financial years ending 31 March
2008 with the performance of the FTSE All Share Index
over the same peniod This Index has been chosen as 1t
correspands with the Company’s stated objectives as
shown on page 2

to FTSE All Share Index

Companson of NAV and Share Price Total Return Performance of The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc

Sources AIC and Datastream
Past performance 1s not a guide to future returns

Shareholders should note that the Companies Act requirement 1s for the points to be plotted on a year end to year end basis
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DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS FOR THE YEAR (AUDITED)
During the year under review the fees paid to the Directors were as follows

2008 2007
Richard Barfield 27,500 25,000
Scott Dobbie 44,000 40,000
lan Inglis! - 8,167
Jim Pettigrew? 27,000 23,666
Nicola Ralston 24,200 22,000
William Samuel 24,200 22,000
Sir Nigel Wicks 24,200 22,000
Total 171,100 162,833

1 lan inghs retired as a Director on 19 July 2006
2 Jim Pettigrew was appointed Charman of the Audit Committee on 19 July 2006

No Director has receved any taxable expenses, compensation fer loss of office or non cash benefits for the
year ended 31 March 2008 (31 March 2007 same)

On behalf of the Board

WLW

Fidelity Investments International
Secretary
29 May 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report |

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE EDINBURGH
INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

We have audited the financiai statements of The
Eclinburgh Investment Trust ple for the year ended 31
March 2008 which compnse the Income Statement,
the Reconailiation of Movements in Shareholders’
Funds, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement
and the refated notes These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therein We have also audited the information in the
Directors’ Remuneratron Report that 15 described as
having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members,

as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them
in an audktors’ report and for no other purpase To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Compary
and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS

The Directors’ responstbilities for prepaning the Annual
Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law
and UK Accounting Standards {UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) are set aut in the Statement of
Directors' Responsibiiities on page 26

Our responsbility 15 to audit the financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited in accordance wrth relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Audiing
{UX and Ireland)

We report to yau our opirion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared In accordance with the Companies Act 1985
We also report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Directors” Report is consistent
with the financial statements The information gven in
the Directors’ Report includes that specific information
presented In the Business Review section of the
Directors’ Report We also report to you if, (n our
opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting
records, If we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audt, or if information
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
other transactions 15 not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance
Staterent reflects the Company’s comphance with

the nine provisions of the 2006 FRC Combined Cade
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not

We are not required to consider whether the Board's
statements on nternal controls cover all nsks and
contrals, or form an optnion on the effectiveness of the
Company's corporate governance procedures or 1ts sk
and control procedures

We read the other nformation contained mn the

annual report and consider whether it 1s consistent

with the audited financial statements We consider the
smplications for qur report If we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material nconsistencies with
the financial statements Our responsibibties do not
extend to any other nformation

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited Yt aiso
includes an assessment of the s:gnificant estimates and i
Judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of
the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the Company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain
all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Rernuneration Report to be audited are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
other irregularity or error In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information n the financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited

OPINION

tn our opuion

s the financial statements give a true and fair view, 1In
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, of the state of the Company's affarrs as
at 31 March 2008 and of its loss for the year
then ended,

= the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985, and

* the information given in the Directors’ Report 15
cansistent with the financial statements

Kine bk Plc

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
Edinburgh

29 May 2008

The Edinburgh nvestment Trust ple Annual Report 2008 Page 29



|n00me statement for the year ended 31 March

2008 2007
revenue  capital total revenue  capital total

Notes £000 £:000 £000 £:000 £000 £000
(Losses)/gains on investments 2 — (163,699 (163.699) - 1,751 91,751
Income 2 51,723 - 51,723 48,565 - 48,565
Investment management fee 3 (1,112) (2,596) {3,708) {1,241) (2,896) {4,137)
Other expenses 4 (705) - (705) {751) - {751)
Exchange (losses)/gains {© 3 &) 5 {128) (123)
NET RETURN/{LOSS) BEFORE
FINANCE COSTS AND TAXATION 49900 (166,298) (116,398} 45,578 88,727 135,305
Interest payable 5 (5,850) (13,65%) (19,501) (5,850) (13,651) {19,501}
NET RETURN/(LOSS} ON ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 44,050 (179,949) (135,899) 40,728 75,076 115,804
Taxation on return/{loss) on ordinary activities 6 (276) - (278} (14) - (14)
RETURN/(LOSS) ON ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXATION FOR THE YEAR 43,774 (179,949 (136,175) 40,714 75,076 115,790
RETURN/({LOSS) PER ORDINARY SHARE 7 2141p  (8801p) {66 60p) 18 13p 33 44p 51 57p

A Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses has not been prepared as there are no gains
and losses other than those reported i this Income Staterment

The 1otal column of the Income Statement 1s the profit and loss account of the Company

All reverue and capital items in the above statement derve from continuing operations

No operations were acquired or discontinued in the year

The notes on pages 34 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ FUNds e year enced 31 mareh

Opening shareholders’
funds 1 Apnl 2006

Net recognised gans/{losses)
for the year

Repurchase of ordinary shares
Management fee to capital

Debenture interest and amortised
expenses to capital

Revenue after taxation

Dividends pad

Closing shareholders’
funds 31 March 2007

Transfer between reserves™

Net recognised {losses)/gains
for the year

Repurchase of ordinary shares
Management fee to capital

Debenture interest and amortised
expenses to capital

Revenue after taxation

Dividends paid

Closing shareholders’
funds 31 March 2008

*See note 14 on page 41

Notes

14
14
14

14
14

called up share captal  capital  capital

share premum redemption reserve  reserve  revenue total
capital  account raserve realised unreaiised  reserve equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
58,487 6,639 14,968 830,830 245481 58,199 1,214,604
- - - 126,161  (34,538) - 91,623
{4.612) - 4,612 {80,571} - - (80,571)
- - - (2.896) - - (2,894)

- - - (13,651} - - [13,651)

- - - - - 40,714 40,714

_ _ - - - [44.596)  (44,596)
53,875 6,639 19,580 859,873 210,943 54,317 1,205,227
- - - 211,728 (211,728) - -

- - - (163,759 57 - (163,702}
(4,301} - 4,301 (83.492) - {83492
- - (2,596 - - (2,596)

- - - (13,651) - - (13,651)

- - - - 43774 43,774

- - - - - (40,522) (40,522)
49,574 6,639 23,831 808,103 (728) 57.56% 945,038

The notes cn pages 34 to 47 form an integral part of these finanwial statements
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Balance Sheet .31 vacen

2008 2007
Notes £000 £000
FIXED ASSETS
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 9 1,064,645 1,374,218
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 10 10,733 14,008
Fidelity Insttutional Cash Fund plc 52,601 -
Cash at bank 25,444 27,821
88,778 41,829
CREDITORS - AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 11 {12,029 (14,715)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 76,749 27,114
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,141,394 1,401,332
CREDITORS - AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER
MOCRE THAN ONE YEAR 12 {194,356) (196,105)
TOTAL NET ASSETS 245,038 1,205,227
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Calied up share capital 13 49,574 53,875
Share premium account 14 4,639 6,639
Caprtal redemption reserve 14 23,881 19,580
Capital reserve realised 14 808,103 859,873
Capital reserve  unrealised 14 {728) 210,943
Revenue reserve 14 57.569 54,317
TOTAL EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 15 945,038 1,205,227
NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE 15 474 74p 557 47p

The financial statements on pages 30 to 47 were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 May 2008 and were signed
on its behalf by

SCOTT DOBBIE
Chairman
—

The notes on pages 34 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements
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caSh FlOW statement for the year ended 31 March

2008 2007
Notes £'000 £000

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 16 44,438 43,755
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
Interest paid 5 {19.250) {19,250
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM SERVICING OF FINANCE (19,250) (19,250)
FINANCIAL INVESTMENT
Purchase of investments (475,734) (644,058)
Exchange losses {60) -
Disposal of investments 624,890 713,493
Realised losses on long futures positions closed - (179)
NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT 149,096 49,256
EQUITY DIVIDENDS PAID 8 {40,522} (44,596)
NET CASH INFLOW BEFORE USE OF LIQUID RESOURCES
AND FINANCING 135,762 29,165
NET CASH (QUTFLOW)/INFLOW FROM MANAGEMENT
OF LIQUID RESOURCES 17 (52,601} 47 451
NET CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING 83,161 76,616
FINANCING
Repurchase of ordinary shares (85,595) (77,225)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING {85,595) (77,225)

DECREASE IN CASH 17 (2,434) (609)

The notes on pages 34 1o 47 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice ("UK GAAP™) and the AIC Statement of Recommended Practice {"SORP*) for Investment Trusts dated January
2003 and revised in December 2005

a) Basis of accounting - The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical
cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of fixed asset nvestments and on the assumption that approval as
an investment trust will be granted

b) Income — Income from equity Investments s credited to the Income Statement on the date on which the nght to
receive the payment 15 established Interest receivable on fixed interest securities is accounted for on an accruals basis
s as ta reflect the efactive terest rate on the secunty Franked dividends are accounted for net of any tax credit
Unfranked mvestment ncome includes tax deducted at source interest recevable on short term loans and deposits

s dealt with on an aceruals basis Where the Company has elected to receive its dividends in the form of addmional
shares rather than cash, the amount of the cash dividend is recogrised as income Any excess in the value of the
shares recewed over the amount of the cash dividend 1s recognised in the capital column of the Income Statement

The premium receved on covered call options 15 taken to income over the life of the contracts where the strike of the
opuon s greater than the price of the underlying secunty at the time of trade

c} Special dividends - Special dividends are treated as a capital receipt or a revenue receipt depending on the facts
and circurnstances of each particular case

d) Long term borrowings — Long term borrowings are carned in the Balance Sheet at the cumulative amount of net
proceeds on issue plus accrued finance costs Finance costs include the difference between the repayable value on
matunty and the proceeds received on issue which are written off on an effective interest rate basis over the life of
the borrowings Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of debt are wholly charged to caprtal

¢) Expenses and finance costs — All expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and are charged in full to the
revenue column of the Income Statement with the exception of the investment management fee and debenture
interest Expenses are charged to capttal where they are incurred n connection with the maintenance or enhancement
of the vaiue of the investments In this respect the investment managemert fee and relevant finance costs are allocated
between revenue ard capital In line with the Board’s expectation of returns from the Company's investments over

the long term In the form of revenue and capital respectively Since April 2000, the Company has allocated 70%

of management fee and debenture interest to capital and 30% to revenue costs In accordance with the SORP the
Board has reviewed this policy and, having examined consensus forecasts of capital return and dividend payments,
sees no need to change the existing policy at this time

f) Taxation — Deferred taxation 15 recognised in respect of all iming differences that have originated, but not reversed,
at the balance sheet date, where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more, or a right to pay less
tax 1n the future have oceurred A deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed when 1t 15 more Iikely than not that the asset will

be recoverable

g) Foreign currency — The Directors, having regard to the currency of the Company's share capital and the predominant
currency in which Its investors operate, have determined the functional currency to be sterling Transactions
denominated in foreign currencies are calculated in sterling at the rate of exchange ruling as at the date of transactions
Assets and habilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
Realised and unrealised capital gains and losses, mcluding exchange differences on the translation of foreign currency
assets and liabilities, are dealt with in capital reserves  realised and unrealised

hy Valuation of investments — The Company’s business is investing In financial assets with a view to profiting from their
total return i the form of iIncome and capital growth This portfolio of financial assets 1s managed and its performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with 2 documented investment strategy, and information about the
portfolio 1s provided internally on that basis 1o the Company's Board of Directors and other key personnel Accordingly,
upon inmal recognit:on the nvestments are designated by the Company as “at fair value through profit or loss” They
are included inmally at fair value, which 1s taken to be their cost and subsequently, the investments are valued at "fair
value”, which 1s measured as follows
e Listed investments are valued at bid prices, where the bid price 15 available, or otherwise at fair value based on
published price quotations,
» Unlisted nvestments where there 1s not an active market are valued using an appropriate valuation technique so
as to establish what the transaction price would have been at the balance sheet date
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Transaction costs - Financial Reporting Standard 26 {("FRS26") "Financial Instruments Measurement” requires that the
cost of purchasing investments be recogmised and accounted for as a separate item from investment gains However, in
accordance with the AIC SORP the Cormpany includes these costs in the cost of mvestments purchased and has
disclosed them in note ¢

) Captal reserve-realised - Gains and losses on the realisation of investments, changes in fair value of investments
which are readily convertible to cash, without accepting adverse terms, and realised exchange differences of a capital
nature are accounted for in the capitai reserve  realised Purchases of the Company’s own shares for cancellation are
also furnded from this reserve The caprtal element of the nvestment management fee and relevant finance costs are
charged to this reserve Any associated tax relief s credited to this reserve

Capital reserve-unrealised ~ Changes in the tair value of investments held at the year end that are not readily
convertible to cash without accepting adverse terms, and unrealised exchange differences of a capital nature are
accounted for in the capital reserve  unrealised

1) Dridends - In accordance with FRS21 “Events after the Balance Sheet Date” dividends deciared and approved by the
Company after the balance sheet date have not been recogrised as a liability of the Company at the balance sheet date

2008 2007
£'000 £000
INCOME
income from financial assets designated at fair value through proft or loss
Franked investment Income 45,108 45,237
UK scrip dwidends 23 -
Other investment income 742 425
Fixed interest - 137
Premiurm on cail options 1,199 63%
47,072 46,438
Other income from financial assets not at farr value through proftt or loss
Interest recevable on short term deposits 1,980 1,338
Income from Fidelity Institutional Cash Fund plc 2,601 671
Underwriting commission 46 _
Sundry income 24 118
Total iIncome 51,723 48,565
2008 2007
£000 £000
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEE
Investment management fee (excluding VAT) 3,350 3521
VAT on investment management fee to 31 October 2007 (see overleaf) 358 616
investment management fee (including VAT) 3,708 4,137
Charged against caprtal reserve - realised (see note 14) (2,594) (2,896)
Charged aganst revenue 1,112 1,241

The investment management fee 1s 0 26% per annum of the total assets of the Company, after deducting current
lizbHities and excluding commonly managed funds The investment management fee 1s chargeable 30% to revenue
and 70% to capital
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With effect from 1 November 2007 management fees have been exempt from VAT charges following the decision

of the European Court of Justice in the JPMorgan Claverhouse Investment Trust/AIC case (C 363/05) which confirmed
that the VAT exemption applicable to the management of special mvestment funds should also extend to investment
trust companies Therefore investment trust companies are entitled to recover VAT previously charged on such
management fees and HM Revenue & Customs has withdrawn its appeal to the VAT tnbunal

There are uncertanties surrounding the recovery process and amounts and therefore no VAT recoveries have been
recognised in these financial statements It 1s not certain to what extent the full recovery of VAT will be possible The
Company Is no longer paying VAT on its management fees

2008 2007
£000 £7000
4 OTHER EXPENSES
Directors’ fees 171 163
Directors’ expenses 39 63
Regstrars' fees 153 160
Custody fees 64 42
Printing and publication expenses 68 89
Legal and professional fees 52 60
AIC and other fees and subscriptions 102 119
QOther expenses 26 27
Audrtors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company’s Auditors for
the audit of the annual financial statements 24 23
Fees payable to the Company's Auditors for all other services 6 5

Charged against revenue 705 751

—

The non audtt fees related to the Auditors’ review in connection with the half yearly financial statements in 2007 and
2008 and the annual certficate o the trustee of the debenture stocks

2008 2007
£000 £000
5 INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
Financial habilities not at fair value through profit or loss
Debentures repayable after more than five years 19,250 19,250
Amortised debenture stock discount and i1ssue expenses 251 251
19,501 12,501
Charged against caprtal reserve realised (see note 14} {13,651) (13,651)
Charged against revenue 5,850 5,850
2008 2007
£000 £:000
6 TAXATION ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
a) Analysis of charge in year
Qverseas taxation 276 14

Total current tax for year (see note 6} 276 14
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b} Factors affecting the taxation charge for the year
The taxation assessed for the year 1s iower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for an investment trust
company of 30% {2007 30%)

The differences are explained below

2008 2007
£'000 £000

Revenue return on ordinary activities before taxation 44 050 40,728
Return on ordinary activities multiplied by the
standard rate of corporation tax of 30% (2007 30%) 13,215 12,218
Effects of
Incorme not subject to corporation taxation (13,539) {13,571)
Increase 1 excess management
expenses/excess loan relabonship debits in the revenue account 324 1,353
Qverseas taxation 276 14
Current corporation taxation charge (Note 6a) 276 14

Investment trust companies are exempt from taxation on capttal gains if they meet the HM Revenue & Customs cntena
set out 1n 5842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 for a given period Therefore, any capttal return 1s not
included in the above reconciliation

c) Deferred taxation

At 31 March 2008, the Company had net surplus management expenses and net surplus losses on loan relationships
(being the excess of interest payable on the debenture stocks and any other borrowing over interest receivable)

totalling £227,185,728 (2007 £209,854,510} and eligible unrelieved foreign taxation totalling £197,343 (2007 £86,464)
A deferred tax asset has not been recogmsed in respect of these This 1s because the Company 1s not expected to
generate taxable income in a future penod In excess of the deductible expenses of that future period and, accordingly, t
s unlikely that the Company will be able to reduce future taxation hiabilities through the use of existing surplus expenses

2008 2007
revenue capital total revenue capital total
RETURN/(LOSS) PER
ORDINARY SHARE
Basic 2t 41p (88 01p} {66 &0p) 1813p 33 44p 5157p

Returns/{losses) per ardinary share are based on the net revenue return on ordinary activities after taxation of
£43,774,000 (2007 £40,714,000), the net capital ioss in the year of £179,949,000 (2007 return £75,076,000)
and the tota! loss in the year of £136,175,000 (2007 return £11 5,790,000) and on 204,452,781 ordinary shares
{2007 224,522,324) being the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue durng the year

2008 2007
£000 £000

DIVIDENDS
First intenim dividend of 4 75 pence per share paid on 23 November 2007
for the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007 4 40 pence) 9,601 2,609
Second intenm dividend of 4 75 pence per share paid on 8 February 2008
for the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007 4 40 pence) 9,449 ,604
Third interm dividend of 4 40 pence per share paid on 18 May 2007
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006 nil) 9,444 -
Final dvidend of 5 65 pence per share paid on 18 July 2007
for the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006 10 85 pence) 12,028 25,383

40,522 44,596
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The third nterm dividend of 4 75 pence per share, amounting to £9,441,000 was paid an 22 May 2008 for the
year ended 31 March 2008 (2007 4 40 pence) and has not been included as a hability in these financial statements

The Directors have proposed a final dividend of 5 65 pence per share, amounting to £11,085,000, which 1s subject
to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability i these
financial statements

The total dmidend payable in respect of the year ended 31 March 2008, which 1s the basts on which the requirements
of $842 Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 are considered, 1s stated below

2008 2007
£000 £000
First interim dividend of 4 75 pence per share paid (2007 4 40 pence) 9.601 9,609
Second interm cividend of 4 75 pence per share paid (2007 4 40 pence) 9,449 9,604
Third interm dradend of 4 75 pence per share paid on 22 May 2008 (2007 4 4C pence) 9,441 9,444
Proposed final dnadend of 5 65 pence per share payable {2007 5 65 pence) 11,085 12,028
39,576 40,685
2008 2007
£000 £000
9 INVESTMENTS

Listed in the UK 1,064,645 1,374,218
Total listed investments 1,064,645 1,374,218
listed LK unhsted total
£000 £000 £000
Opening book cost 1,162,490 663 1,163,153
Opening farr value adjustment 231,728 (663) 211,065
Opening fair value of nvestments 1,374,218 - 1,374,218

Movements in the year
Purchases at cost 475,726 - 475,726
Sales proceeds (621,600 - {621,600)
Sales realised gamns on sales 84,318 - 84,318
Changes in far value (248,017) - (248,017}
Closing fawr value of nvestments 1,064,645 - 1,064,645
Closing book cost 1,100,934 663 1,101,597
Closing farr value adjustment (36,289) {663) (36,952}
Closing far value of mvestments 1,064,645 - 1,064,645
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Net gains on investments
Gains on sales
Changes in fair value

Net gams on investments
Gains on sales

Changes in farr value

The partfolio turnover rate for the year was 36 6% (2007 46 5%)

Costs of investment transactions
Purchases expenses
Sales expenses

2008
£000 £000 £°000
84,318 - 84,318
(248,017) - (248,017)
{163,699} {163,699
2007
£000 £000 £'000
126,161 - 126,161
(34,372) (38} (34,410
91,789 (38} 91,751
2008 2007
£000 £000
2,613 3,400
521 575
3,134 3,975

All of the investments are financial assets designated at farr value through profit or loss on intal recognition

With effect from 1 Apnl 2007, changes in fair value of investments which are readily convertible to cash, without
accepting adverse terms, at the balance sheet date are considered to be realised Far value gans on unlisted
Investments are not treated as readily convertible to cash, whereas the treatment of fair value gains on isted
investments depends upon the individual cireumstances of each investment

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
10 DEBTORS

Securities sold for future settlement 1,415 4,672
Accrued income 9,254 9,087
Overseas tax recoverable - 155
Brokers' rebate recevable 35 68
Prepayments 29 26
10,733 14,008
2008 2007
£000 £000

11 CREDITORS - AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Securities purchased for future settlement 5,839 5,870
Interest due on debenture stocks 2,836 2,836
Other credrtors 763 1,315
Amount payable on share repurchases 2,59 4,694
12,029 14,71%
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2008 20067
£'000 £000

12 CREDITORS - AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
11)%% debenture stock 2014 100,000 100,000
7Y% debenture stock 2022 100,00C 100,000
Unamortised discount and expenses of debenture ssue (3,644) (3,895)

196,356 196,105
The 11%% debenture stock 1s redeemable at par on 30 June 2014 and interest 1s payable in half yearly instalments in
June and December each year The 7%% debenture stock 1s redeemable at par on 30 September 2022 and nterest is
payable in half yearly instalments in March and September each year
Both debenture stocks are secured by a floating charge over the whole of the assets of the Company

The market value of the debenture stocks at 31 March 2008 was £251 ,974,000 {2007 £257,248,000)

The effect on the net asset value of deducting the debenture stocks at market value rather than at par is disclosed in
note 13

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
13 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
314,099,929 (2007 316,099,929) ordinary shares of 25 pence each 79,025 79,025
Allotted, called up and fully pand
Beginning of year
215,496,748 (2007 233,946,714 orchnary shares of 25 pence each 53,875 58,487
1 Aprit 2007 to 31 March 2008 repurchase of 17,202,000 shares (2007 18,449,966) 4,201) 4,612)
End of year
198,294,748 (2007 215,496,748} ordinary shares of 25 pence each 49,574 53,875

——

The Company does not have any externally imposed capital requirements The capital of the Company 15 managed
in accordance with its nvestment policy in pursuit of 1ts Investment objective, both of which are detailed on page 2
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2008

share capital caprtal capital
premium  redemption reserve reserve  revenue
account reserve  reahsed unrealised  reserve
£000 £'000 £000 £:000 £000

14 RESERVES

Beginning of year 6,639 19,580 B59,873 210,943 54,317
Transfer between reserves® - - 211,728 (211,728) -
Exchange (losses)/gains on other net assets - - 60) 57 -
Net gain on realisation of investments - - (143,699) - -
Repurchase of ordinary shares - 4,301 (83,492) - -
Management fee to capital - - (2,596) - -
Debenture interest and amortised expenses - - (13,651) - -
Net revenue after taxation for the year - - - 43,774
Dividends paid to shareholders - - - (40,522)
End of year 6,639 23,881 808,103 (728) 57,569

15

*In accardance with TECH 02/07 Dhstributable Profits, with effect from 1 Apnl 2007, changes in fawr value of investments
which are readily convertible to cash, without accepung adverse terms, at the batance sheet date are mcluded in
realised, rather than unrealised, capial reserves The balances on both reserves at 1 April 2007 have been amended

by a reserve transfer ta reflect this change

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Total shareholders’ funds have been calculated in accordance with the provisions of FRS26 The analysis of total
shareholders’ funds on the face of the balance sheet does not reflect the nghts, under the Articles of Association, of the
ordinary shareholders on a return of assets These rights are reflected in the net asset value and the asset value per share
stiributable to ordinary shareholders at the year end, adjusted to reflect the deduction of the debenture stocks at par

A reconciliation between the two sets of figures follows

2008 2007

Total shareholders’ funds {f) 945,038,000 1,205,227,000
Less Debenture stocks discount (£} (54,000 (57,000}
Debenture stocks 1ssue expenses (£} (3,.5%0.000; {3,538,000)

Net assets debt at par (f) 941,394,000 1,201,332,000
Number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at year end 198,294,748 215,496,748
Total shareholders’ funds per share (pence} 476 58 559 28
Less Unamortised debenture stocks discount and issue expenses {pence) {184) (181)
Net asset value per share  debt at par (pence) 47474 557 47
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2008 2007

£000 £'000
The movements duning the year of the assets
attributable to the ardinary shares were as follows
Net assets debt atpar at 31 March 2007 1,201,332 1,210,458
Total recognised capital {lossy/gan for the year {179,949) 75,076
Revenue return for the year 43,774 40,714
Dwvidends appropnated in the year {40,522) (44,596)
Mavement in unamortised debenture stocks discount and ssue expenses 251 251
Repurchase of ordinary shares (83,492) (80,571)
Net assets debt at par  at 31 March 2008 241,394 1,201,332

The net asset value per share adjusted to include the debenture stocks at market value rather than at par is as fallows

2008 2007
£000 £000
Net assets debt at par at 31 March 2008 (from above) 941,394 1,201,332
Adjust for debt at market value
Debt at par 200,000 200,000
Debt at market value {251,974) {257,248}
Adjusted capital net assets debt at market value 31 March 2008 889,420 1,144,084
Number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at year end 168,294,748 215,496,748
Adjusted capital net asset value per share debt at market value {pence) 448 53 530 90
2008 2007
£'000 €000
16 RECONCILIATION OF NET REVENUE BEFORE FINANCE COSTS
AND TAXATION TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss)/return before finance costs and taxation (116,398} 135,305
Capital loss/(return) for the year 166,298 (88,727)
Net revenue return before finance costs and taxation 49,900 46,578
Scnp dividends (23) -
{Increase)/decrease n accrued income {167} 392
Decrease/(increase) in other debtors 152 {30
Decrease in other creditors {552) (275)
Management fee charged to capital {2,594} (2.896)
Overseas taxation paid 276} (14)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 46,438 43,755

—
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2008 2007
£'000 £:000
17 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH
MOVEMENTS TO MOVEMENT N NET DEBT
Net debt at the beginning of the year (168,284) (119,845}
Net cash outflow 2,434) (609
Unrealised exchange gains/(losses) 57 (128)
Fidelity Insttutional Cash Fund plc 52,601 47,451
Amortisation of debt (251) (251
Change in net debt 49,973 (48,439)
Net debt at the end of the year (118,311 (168,284)
Qther
non cash  Exchange
2008 Cashflows movements losses 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Analysis of balances
Frdelity Institutional Cash Fund plc 52,601 52,601 - - -
Cash at bank 25,444 (2,434) - 57 27,821
Debt due after more than one year {196,356) - (251} - {196,105)
{118,311} 50,167 {251) 57 {168,284
2008 2007
share share
capital debentures total capital debentures total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
18 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES
iN FINANCING DURING THE YEAR
Beginning of the year 60,514 194,105 254,619 65,126 195,854 260,980
Repurchase of ordinary shares (4,301) - (4,301) 4,612 - (4,612
Amortised discount and Issue expenses - 251 251 - 251 251
End of the year 54,213 196,356 252,569 460,514 196,105 256,619

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management of risk

The investment objectives of the Company are detailed in Objectives and Investment Policy on page 2 In pursuit of
this objective, the Company may be exposed to vanous forms of nisk, as described below and as described on pages
12 to 14 within the Principal Risks and Uncertamties section

The Company’s financial instruments comprise

s Equity shares held in accordance with the Company's investment objectives and palicy

s Futures and covered call options held in accordance with the Company's investment objectives and policy
« Cash, iquid resources and short term debtors and creditors that arise from its operations

* Debenture stocks
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The risks ansing from the Company’s financial instruments are market nisk (which comprises equity price risk, interest rate
nsk and foreign currency exposure}, liquidity nsk and credit nsk The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks, which are summansed below These policies have remained unchanged since the beginning of the
accounting period

It 1s, and has been throughout the year under review, the Company’s policy that no trading in financial instruments
shall be undertaken

Market price risk

Market price risk anses manly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments used 1 the Company’s
business It reprasents the potentiat loss the Company might suffer through holding market positions in the face of
price movements and changes in exchange rates The Board meets monthly to consider the asset allocation of the
portfolio and the risk associated with particular industry sectors within the parameters of the investment cbjectives

The Investment Manager 1s responsible for actively monitering the existing portfolio selected in accordance with the
overalt asset allocation parameters described above and seeks to ensure that indwidual stocks also meet an acceptable
nsk/reward profile

The Company has the option to nvest up to £206 million of the debenture stocks in the equity market In a nsing market
the Company would benefit, but in a falling market the impact could be severe In order to manage the level of gearing,
the Investment Manager invests part of the assets available in Fidelty Institutional Cash Fund ple and short term cash
deposits This controls the level of net gearing

Long futures posttians have been used as a quick and effective means to increase the Company’s exposure to the
equity market There were no transactions in futures dunng the year (2007 realised capital losses £179,000}

Foreign currency risk
Almost all of the financial assets and financial habilities of the Company are denominated in sterfing, therefore the net
assets and total return are not significantly affected by currency movements

Interest rate risk

All of the Company’s long term debt is fixed rate which exposes the Company to changes in market value in the event
that the debt 15 repaid before matunty The debenture stocks in 1ssue provide secure long term funding while short term
flexibility 15 achieved through overdraft faciliies Information on the debenture stocks 1s provided in note 12

Liquidity risk
The Company's assets manly comprise readly realisable secunties, which can be easily sold to meet funding
commitments 1f necessary Shart term flexibility 1s achieved by the use of overdraft facilities as required

Credit risk

Counterparty credit risk 1s not judged to be significant as transactions are carmed out with a large number of brokers,
all transactions are settled on a delivery versus payment basis and limits are set on the amount that may be due from
any one broker

Investments may be adversely affected if any of the institutions with which money 1s deposited or the Company's
custodian suffers insolvency or other financial difficutties All security transactions are through brokers which have been
approved as an acceptable counterparty This 15 reviewed on an ongoing basis
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Financial assets
The Company's financial assets comprise equity Investments, short term debtors and cash The currency cash flow profile
of these financial assets s shown below

2008 investments short term
at fair value through debtors
profit or loss  book value  cash at bank total
£'000 £000 £000 £000
US dollar - - 157 157
UK steriing 1,064,645 63,334 25,287 1,153,266
1,064,645 63,334 25,444 1,153,423
2007 Investments short term
at farr value through debtors
profitor loss  book vaiue  cash at bank total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
US dollar - - 938 938
UK sterling 1,374,218 13,853 26,883 1,414,954
1,374,218 13,853 27,821 1,415,892

The Balance Sheet ncludes debtors which are not classified as financial assets

Financial habilities

The Company finances its nvestment activities through its ordmary share capital, reserves and borrowings
The Company's financial habilities compnise its debenture stocks and other short term creditors
The currency cash flow profile of these financial iabiities 1s shown below

2008 2007
UK sterling UK sterling
denominated  short term denominated  short term
debentures creditors total debentures creditors total
£'000 £000 £:000 £'000 £000 £000
UK sterling 196,356 12,029 208,385 196,105 14,715 210,82¢

Foreign currency risk sensitity analysis

At 31 March 2008, if steriing had strengthened by 5% i relation to the US dollar, with all other vanables held constant,
total net assets and total return on ordinary activities would have decreased by £8,000 (2007 £47,000) A 5% weakening
of sterling against the US dolfar, with all other variables heid constant, would have had an equal but opposite effect on
the financial statement amounts
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Interest rate risk profile of financial assets and habihities
The analysis below summarnises the extent to which the Company's assets and labiliies are affected by changes in
interest rates

2008 cash flow fair value

interest interest no interest

rate risk rate risk rate risk total

£'000 £000 £000 £000

{nvestments at fair value through profit or loss - - 1,064,645 1,064,645
Other debtors 52,601 - 10,733 63,334
Cash balances 25,444 - - 25,444
Total financial assets 78,045 - 1,075,378 1,153,423
Creditors - - {12,029 (12,029
Fixed rate unsecured debenture stocks - (196,356) - {196,35%)
Tota! financial habilities - (196,356) (12,029) {208,3858)
Total financial assets/(liabiities) 78,045 {196,356) 1,063,349 945,038
2007 cash flow fair value

interest interest no interest

rate risk rate sk rate nsk total

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Investments at fair value through profit or loss - - 1,374,218 1,374,218
Other debtors - - 13,853 13,853
Cash balances 27,821 - - 27.821
Tota! financial assets 27,821 - 1,388,071 1,415,892
Creditors - - (14,715) (14,715)
Fixed rate unsecured debenture stocks - (194,105} - (194,105)
Total financial hatlities - (196,105} {14,715) (210,820)
Total financial assets/(labihties) 27,821 (195,105} 1,373,356 1,205,072

The Balance Sheet mcludes debtors which are not classified as financial assets

Interest rate rnisk sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2008  interest rates would have increased by 0 5% the total return on ordinary activities wouid have increased
by £390,000 (2007 £70,000) A decrease n the Interest rates by O 5% would have had an equal but opposite effect

Other price nisk

Changes in market prices other than those ansing from interest rate nsk or currency nsk may also affect the value of
the Company’s net assets Details of how the Board sets nisk parameters and performance objectives can be found on
pages 12 to 14 under the Principat Risks and Uncertanuies section

Other price nsk sensitivity analysis
A full Iist of the Company's investments 1s shown on pages 48 and 49 In addition, a hst of the thirty largest investments
analysed by industrial sector 1s shown an page 16

All of the Company’s Investments are in quoted equites A 3% increase in the market value of these
investrments at 31 March 2008 would have increased total assets and total return on ordinary actvities by £31,939,000
(2007 £41,227,000) A decrease of 3% would have had an equa! but opposite effect
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Financial habilities
The interest rate sk profile of the Company's financia! liabilities at 31 March 2008 and 2007 15 as follows

2008 2007
£000 £000

Fair value mterest rate risk
After more than five years 196,356 194,105

Farr value of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabil:ties are stated in the Balance Sheet at values which are not mater:ally different to therr fair
values As explained in note 1 investments are shown at farr value which 1s bid market price In the case of cash, book
value approximates 1o far value due to the short maturity of the instruments The exceptions are the unsecured long
term fixed rate debenture stacks, whose fair values as at 31 March 2008, given below, have been calculated on the
basis of quoted market prices for the stocks

2008 2007

farr value  book value far value  bock value
£000 £000 £'000 £000
11%% debenture stock 2014 132,291 100,000 133,730 100,000
7%% debenture stock 2022 119,683 100,000 123,518 100,000
251,974 200,000 257,248 200,000

Borrowings

effective

interest rate matunity 2008 2007
After more than five years % £000 £'000
11%% debenture stock 2014 1150 30 Jure 2014 100,000 100,000
7%.% debenture stock 2022 775 30 September 2022 100,000 100,000

200,000 200,000

20 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There were no contingent labilities or capital commitments as at 31 March 2008 (2007 nil

21 TRANSACTIONS WITH THE MANAGER

The Directars have complied with the provisions of FRS8 which require disclosure of related party transactions and
balances Fidelity Investments International 1s the Manager and Secretary of the Company and details of the services
provided and fees paid are given on pages 8 and 25 and note 3 an pages 35 and 36
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Investments ..:: voen 2008

£'000 £000
BASIC MATERIALS FINANCIALS
CHEMICALS BANKS
Croda International 5,519 HSBC 50,123
Victrex 809 Royal Bank of Scotland 39,926
MINING HBOS 15,554
Anglo Amencan 22,945 Standard Chartered 13,866
BHP Billiton 18,402 U|C|>yd5 TSB 6,336
Eurasian Natural Resources 3,292 Aé;”;::"_ LT'CESterAL 2504
PAPER & FOREST PRODUCTS G FINANC
MONDI 637 Man Group 15,741
intermediate Capital 10,013
MONDI CDI — 29 3,Group 6,978
51,883
— ICAP 3,951
CONSUMER GOODS Cattles 2772
AUTCMOBILES & PARTS LIFE ASSURANCE
GKN 14,687 Legal & General 27,425
FOOD PRODUCERS Awviva 19,048
Associated British Foods 5,320 Prudenual 12,328
HOUSEHOLD GOODS NON LIFE ASSURANCE
Taylor Wimpey 31818 Catlin Group 4,644
Barratt Developments 3.691 Brit Insurance Holdings 2,497
TOBACCO REAL ESTATE
Impenal Tobacco 32,373 Helical Bar 227
British American Tobacco 32,338 M
92227 HEALTH CARE
CONSUMER SERVICES HEALTH CARE EQUIPMENT & SERVICES
FOOD & DRUG RETAILERS Whatman 2,742
Tesco 24533 PHARMACEUTICALS & BIOTECHNOLOGY
Majestic Wine 4,421 AstraZeneca 30,243
GENERAL RETAILERS GlaxoSmithKhine 22,197
DSG International s905  Shre 6260
Home Retall 5,896 ..__61 442
Kesa Electricals 4,738 INDUSTRIALS
HMVI . 3530 EROSPACE & DEFENCE
Woolworths 1991 BAE Systems 15,948
Dignity 1,901 Rolls Royce 8,062
Pendragon 908 VT Group 8,022
Jessops 184 Meggit 5,797
MEDIA Rolls Royce ‘B’ 179
Reed Elsevier 14926 £ ECTRONIC & ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT
Aegrs 7,721 Spectris 5,767
:;I—E Greup 2';;2’ Renishaw 741
earson ‘ GENERAL INDUSTRIALS
T&F Informa 5,658
Smiths Group 13,899
Tayior Nelson Sofres 5,432
Yell Grou 5367  exam 8,207
Ty P 290 INDUSTRIAL ENGINEERING
Yougov ’79 4 Rotork 8,567
M
TRAVEL & LEISURE 'FK: ;;;;
Amva 7500 o pPORT SERVICE ‘
Millennium & Copthorne 3,708 v ICES
Tur Travel 3,369 Capita Graup 10,522
Wilham Hil 3,419 \Hﬂfﬂs | 10301
The Restaurant Group 1,359 olseley 10118
_12W37_ Serco 2,541
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Investments .31 varcn 2008

£'000
Mitte 6,944
Group 4 Securicor 46,141
Travis Perkins 5,986
Bunzl 5,650
Intertek Testing 4,599
SIG 3,944
Filtrona 271
Sthree 2,487
Galiform 2,112
163,801
OlL & GAS
QIL & GAS PRODUCERS
BP 76,630
Royal Dutch Shell ‘B 62,445
BG Group 24,591
Royal Dutch Shell *A' 21,114
ENI Lasmo 580
185,360
TECHNOQLOGY
SOFTWARE & COMPUTER SERVICES
Computacenter 3,100
Fidessa 2,988
togicaCMG 2519
TECHNOLOGY HARDWARE EQUIPMENT
Psion 3,837
12,444
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
FIXED LINE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
BT 10,512
Cable & Wireless 4,358
MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
Vodafone 53,055
69,925
UTILITIES
ELECTRICITY
Scottish & Southern Energy 15,622
Drax Group 4,430
GAS, WATER & MULT! UTILITIES
National Gnd Transco 29,162
Centrica 8,379
57,593
1,064,645
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Notice of Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the one hundred and
nineteenth Annual General Meeting of The Edinburgh
Investment Trust ple will be held at the Weston

Link, National Galleries of Scotland, Princes Street,
Edinburgh on Monday 21 July 2008 at 2 30pm,

for the following purposes

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1 To receive the report of the Directors and Auditors
and the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2008
2 To approve a final dividend on the ordinary shares
3 Tore elect Mr Scott Dobbie a Director of
the Company
4 Tore elect Sir Nigel Wicks a Director of the Company
5 To te elect Mr Richard Barfield a Director of
the Company
é To approve the Directors’ Rernuneration Report
for the year ended 31 March 2008
7 Tore appoint KPMG Augt Plc as Auditors of
the Company
8 To authonse the Directors to determine the
remuneration of the Auditors for the year to
31 March 2009

SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, If thought fit, pass the following
resolutions

Special Resolution

¢ That, in substitution for any existing authornty,
the Company be and it 1s hereby authorised in
accordance with Section 166 of the Companies Act
1985 (the “Act”), to make market purchases (within
the meaning of Section 163(3) of the Act) of any of its
ordinary shares of 25p each ("shares”) in such manner
and upon such terms as the Directors of the Company
may from time to time determing, provuded that

NOTES

1 A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
1s entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies (who need not be
a shareholder of the Company) to exercise all or any of
his nghts ta attend speak and vote at the Annual General
Meeting Where more than one proxy 1s apponted, each
proxy rrust be appointed for different shares A proxy need
not be a member of the Company

2 Aform of proxy far use by shareholders 1s enclosed with
these financial statements Comgietion and return of the
form of proxy will not prevent any shareholder from
attending the meeting and voting i person To be valid,
the form of proxy should be lodged together with any
pawer of attarney or other authonty iif any) under which
i 13 signed or a notarially certifred copy of such power
or authonty at the address stated thereon, so as to be
received not less than 48 hours before the time of the

{) the maximum number of shares hereby authonsed
to be purchased s 14 9% of the issued share capral
of the Company as at the date of the passing of
this resolution,

fi} the mimmum price which may be paid for a share
shatl be 25p,

{1} the maximum price {exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for a share shall be an 2mount equal to 105%
of the average of the middle market quotations (as
derved from the London Stock Exchange Daly
Official List) for the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of purchase, and

{¥) unless previously revoked, renewed or vaned, the
authonty hereby conferred shall expire on the earher
of 20 January 2009 or at the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company 1o be held in 2009,
save that the Company may, pror to such expiry enter
into a contract or contracts to purchase shares under
such authority which would or might be executed
wholly or partly after the expiry of such authonty
and the Company may make such a purchase in
pursuance of any such contract or contracts as if
the authonty hereby conferred had not expired

Special Resolution

10 That, the revised Articles of Association, in the
form produced to the Annual General Meeting
and inttialled by the Chairman of the Meeting
for the purpose of identification be adopted
as the Articles of Assotiation of the Company
in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the
existing Articles of Association

By order of the Board

Fidelity Investments International

Secretary
10 June 2008

meeting or adjourned meeting or, n the case of a polt
taken more than 48 hours after it 1s demanded, not less
than 24 hours before the time appomted for the taking
of the poll at which it 15 to be used

3 1In the case of jont holders, the vote of the senior who
tenders the vote shall be accepted to the exclusion of
the vates of the other jont helders and for this purpose,
semority shall be determined by the order in which the
names stand it the Register of Members

4 In accordance with Section 325 of the Companes Act 2006

("2006 Act ) the nght to appo:nt proxies does not apply
to persons nominated 1o receive information nights under
Section 1456 of the 2006 Act Persons nominated to receive
mformation nghts under Section 146 of the 2006 Act whe
have been sent a copy of this notice of meeting are hareby
informed in accordance with Section 14%9(2} of the 2006
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Notice of Meeting

Act, that they may have the right under an agreement with attend or vote at the meeting, notwithstanding any
the registered member by whom they were nominated to provisians in any enactment, the Articles of Association
be apponted, or to have someone else appointed asa of the Company or other instrument to the contrary
proxy for this meeting If they have no such nght, or do & There are special arrangements for holders of shares
not wish to exercise it they may have a nght under such through the Fideiity Investment Trust Share Plan and the
an agreement to give instructions to the member as to Fidelity ISA/PEP and for holders through the Aberdeen
the exercise of voting nights Nommnated persons should Investment Trust Share Plan, the Aberdeen Investment
contact the registered member by whom they were Trust PEP the Aberdeen i15A and the Edinburgh Fund r
nominated i respect of these arrangements Managers Investment Trust Pension These are explained
5 Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertficated Securities in the Letter of Direction which such holders will have
Regulations 2001, the Company specifies that only those receved with this report
shareholders entered on the register of members of the 7 Shareholders and any proxies or representatives they
Company as at 6 00pm on 19 July 2008 or, m the event that appont agree by attending the meeting that they are
the meeting 1s adjourned on the register of members 48 expressly agreeing that they are willing to recewe any
hours before the time of any adjourned meeting, shall be communications including communications relating
entitled 1o attend and vote at the meeting in respect of the to the Company’s securities, made at the meeting
number of crdinary shares registered n their name at that 8 Copies of the Directers’ letters of appointment will be
nme Changes to the entries in the register of members available prior to the Annual General Meeting No
after 6 00pm on 19 July 2008 or, n the event that the Dhrector has a service contract with the Company !
meeting ts adjourned on the register of members 48
hours before the tme of any adjourned meeting shalt be Registered office
disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to Quartermile One, 15 Lauriston Place, Edinburgh EH3 9EP
Financial Calendar
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

This year's Annual General Meeting will be held at the Weston Link, National Galleries of Scotland, Princes Street,
Edinburgh on Monday 21 July 2008 at 2 30pm Shareholders are asked to reply on the enclosed form if they will
be attending the meeting Following the meeting shareholders will have the opportunity to meet the Board and
representatives of the Manager informally Tea and biscutts wall be served

Announcements, ordinary share dividend payments, debenture stock interest payments and the ssue of the
annual and half yearly reports may normally be expected n the following months

June Annual report and financial statements November Report for half year to 30 September
published Interest paid on 11%2% published First ntenm dividend paid

debenture stock December Interest paid on 11%:% debenture stock

July Annual Generai Meeting and final February  Second interm dividend paid
dvidend pad
March Interest paid on 7%% debenture stock
September interest paid on 7%% debenture stock
May Third interim dwidend paid Preliminary

October Half yearly figures announced higures and recommended fnal

dividend for year announced
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Appendix

EXPLANATORY NOTE OF PRINCIPAL
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE COMPANY'S
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Resolution 10 1n the Notice of Meeting included in this
Annual Report 1s a special resolution relating to the
adoption of new Articles of Association {*New Articles")
in order to take account of changes in company law
brought about by the Companies Act 2006 (“the 2006
Act") Since it 1s expected that the 2006 Act wilt not be
fully in force until October 2009, there may be further
changes to be made to the New Articles at the
Company’s annual general meeting in 2009 The
proposed principal changes to be made to the exssting
Articles of Association ("Existing Articles”) are set out
below The proposed New Articles showing all the
changes are available for inspection at the Company's
registered office from the date of this Annual Report
until the close of the Annual General Meeting

1 Directors' conflicts of interests

The 2006 Act sets out Directors’ general duties The
provisions largely codify the existing law, but with some
changes Under the 2006 Act, a Director must avoid a
situation where he has, or can have, a direct or indirect
Interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict with the
Company's interests, or otherwise ensure that such
conflict 1s approved by sharehalders in general meeting,
This requirement 15 very broad and could apply, for
example, if a Director becomes a Director of another
company or a trustee of another orgamsation The
2006 Act allows directors of public companies to
authorise conflicts and potential conflicts of other
Directors where the articles of association contan

a provision to this effect

The relevant provistons of the 2006 Act in relation to
conflicts of interest will not come into force until 1
October 2008 However, in ant:cipation of this, itis
proposed that the New Articles wift have an effective
provision which will give the Directars authority to
approve such conflicts of interest There are safeguards
which will apply when Drrectors decide whether to
authorise a conflict or potental conflict Firstly, only
independent Directors (i those who have no interest in
the matter being considered) will be able to take the
relevant decision, and secondly, in taking the decision
the Directors must act In a way they consider, in good
faith, will be most likely to promote the Company’s

success The independent Directors will be able to
impose lmits ar conditions when giving authorisation of
which they think 1s appropriate

The New Articles also contain provisions to ensure that
a Director must not impart confidential information 1n
respect of the matter which gives rise to a conflict of
interest or potential conflict of interest,  under a duty
of confidentiality to anather company The New Articles
alsa contain provisions stating that a Director need

not participate in Board discussions or consider Board
papers in respect of the matter which gives nse to a
conflict of interest or potential conflict of mterest These
prowisions will only apply where the position giving nise
to the potential conflict has previously been authonised
by the Directors in accordance with the 2006 Act

2 Electronic commumnications

The Companies Act 1985 {("the 1985 Act™), allowed
companies to use electronic communications in
certain contexts, for instance to send annual financial
statements and notices of meetings to shareholders
The new provisions in the 2006 Act apply more
generally to all types of company communications
made pursuant to the 2006 Act In order for the
Company to fully implement the new electronic
communications regime in the future, shareholders
must approve the New Articles

The amendments to the Existing Articles will not of
themselves force either the Company or any individual
shareholder to send or receive notices, documents

or information {including annual financial statements
and circulars) by electronic means They will, however,
allow the Company to approach the shareholders in the
future for therr ndividual agreement to use electronic
mail and/or publication on the Company'’s website for
Company communications t 1s the Board's intention
that 1t will, in due course, approach shareholders for
their ndvidual agreement to use either electronic mail
and/or publication on the Company's website of
Company communications Shareholders should ensure
that they read such a request letter carefully and follow
the instructions set out in it The implementation of

the electronic commurications regime will enable the
Company to reduce costs, reduce the environmental
impact of its business and generally enhance the level
and guality of communications with shareholders
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3 Shareholder meetings

31 The New Articles reflect the fact that the 2006 Act
does not contain any references to extraordinary
general meetings of shareholders Under the 2006
Act, any meeting other than an annual general
meeting 1s simply classified as a general meeting

3 2 It 15 now the position under the 2006 Act, that
future annual general meetings of the Company
must be held withim 6 months of the end of the
relevant accounting reference penod The 1985
Act previpusly stated that annual general meetings
must be held once 1n every calendar year The
New Articles therefore reflect this

3 3 The prowisions in the Existing Articles dealing with
the convening of general meetings and length of
netice required to convene general meetings have
now been amended to conform to new provisions
in the 2006 Act In paruicular, a general meeting to
consider a special resolution can be convened on
14 clear days notice whereas previously, 21 clear
days notice was required

4 Proxes

The 2006 Act now provides that shareholders can
appoint multiple proxies Proxies can alse now speak
at general meetings The 2006 Act also provides that
proxies shall have the same nght to vote on a show
of hards as shareholders The New Articles therefore
reflect these provisions

5 Transfers of shares

The 2006 Act prowides that f the Directors refuse to
register a transfer; then In addition to sending the
purparted transferee notice of refusal, the Directors
must also give reasons for the refusal and any further
information about such reasons that the purported
transferee may reasonably request The Existing Articles
have therefore been amended in this regard

& Agelmit

The Existing Articles state that a Director must resign
once he reaches the age of 70 Such a provision
could now fall foul of the Employment Equality (Age)

Regulations 2006 and 1t 1s therefore proposed that this
provision 1s remaved from the New Articles it 1s worth
noting that shareholders will still have the opportunity
to propose a resolution for the removal of the Directors

under the relevant legislation The New Articles will
also continue to provide that a Director must vacate
his office, If, amangst other things, he becomes
incapable by reasen of unsound mind, he 1s absent

from meetings for 6 cansecutive months, he 1s declared

barkrupt or his co Directors elect to remaove him
from office tn addmion, the AIC Code on Corporate
Governance provides that once a Director serves a 9
year term, he shall submit himself for re election at
each subsequent annual general meeting

7 Directors’ indemnities

The 2006 Act now provides that a company which
s a trustee of an occupational pension scheme can
now indemnify a Director against hzbility incurred n
connection with the company’s activities as trustee
of the scheme The New Articles therefore reflect
this change
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Investing in The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc

The Manager of this Company - Fidelity Investments International - offers a range of options, so that you
can invest in the way that (s best for you As The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc 1s a company listed on the
Londan Stock Exchange you can also buy its shares through a stockbroker, share shop or bank

INVESTING INSIDE AN ISA

You may Invest in the Company’s shares through the
Fidelty ISA {"Indvidual Savings Account”) A Fidelity
ISA can be an excellent way to get more from your
nvestment, because you will not have to pay income
or capltal gatns tax on your returns

With effect from & April 2008 the distinction between
Mim and Maxi 1SAs was removed and the maximum
nvestment 1n a stocks and shares ISA 15 £7,200

The minimum investment in the Fidehty ISA s £1,000
as a tump sum, £250 as a top up or £50 a month in a
regular savings plan

5 1n 1 ISA — The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc 1s one
of five investment trusts managed by Fidelity You can
invest 1n the entire range through the Fidelity 5 in 1
1SA, which spreads your money equally across all five
investment trusts This offers a simple and convenient
way to nvest across Europe, the UK, Japan and Asia -
giving you a broadly diversfied portfolio in a single
investment You can invest in the 51n 1 15A from just
£100 a month or £1,000 lump sum

Charges — The standard mitai charge for the Fidelity 15A
15 3 5% The annual ISA adminstration charge for The
Edinburgh Investment Trust plc in a Fdelity I1SA 15 0 5% +
VAT There is an addtional annual charge of 0 5% + VAT
when you invest through a Financial Adviser

MOVING MONEY FROM

PREVIOUS PEPS AND ISAS

If you have opened 1SAs or PEPs with other mvestment
companies, you can move them into the Fidelity ISA
and mvest m The Edinburgh investment Trust plc
without losing any tax benefits This 1s known as a
transfer and 1t can be a great way to give your
portfolio a new focus, or to realign it with your current
investment goals Please note that during the transfer
your money will nat be invested in the stockmarket so
you may miss out on any growth dunng this time

Charges - The standard imiial charge for a transfer 1s
3 5% You will not have to pay any additional transfer
costs However, please bear in mind that your current
ISA or PEP manager may ask you to pay an exit fee
The annual charge 15 as shown i the “Investing inside
an I1SA" section

INVESTING OUTSIDE AN ISA
1f you prefer to invest outside an ISA, or have already
used your full ISA allowance, the Fidelity Investment Trust

Share Pian offers you a low cost and convenient way to
put money nto The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc The
minimum mvestment 15 £1,000 as a lump sum, £250 as a
top up or £50 a month in a regular savings plan

Investing for children - The Share Plan is a flexible

and mexpensive way to Invest on behalf of children All
you have to do 1s enter the initials or name of the child
in the Designation Box on the Share Plan applicauon
form A specal leaflet on investing for children through
imvestrnent trusts 15 available from Fidelity

Charges — There are no charges for buying, selling or
holding shares through the Fidelity Investment Trust
Share Plan other than Stamp duty of 0 5%, which 1s
currently payable on all share purchases However, if
you invest through an Independent Financial Adviser,
there may be an initial charge of up to 3%

MOVING EXISTING SHARES TO FIDEUTY

If you have an Edinburgh Investment Trust plc ISA
or PEP with the previous manager, Edinburgh Fund
Managers ["EFM"), you will have been adwvised that
its management has been transferred to Aberdeen
Asset Management {*Aberdeen”} You can transfer
your Aberdeen ISA or PEP to Fidelity who will pay
the exit fee charged by Aberdeen

Alternatively, if you have invested through the
Aberdeen \nvestment Trust Share Plan (formerly the
EFM InvestIT Saving Scheme or the EFM LEAP Saving
Scheme) you can move your shares to the Fidelity
Investment Trust Share Plan and Fideiity will cover any
exit fees charged by Aberdeen This transfer could be
particularly useful for Investors who wish to restart a
menthly savings plan (no longer available with the
Aberdeen Investment Trust Share Plan) and want all
their holdings together 1n one account

An addtional bonus for investors transferring holdings
from Aberdeen 15 that Fidelity will accept monthly
savings contributions below its normal minimurm
mvestment of £50 a month

Melding shares directly — If you have shares in The
Edinburgh Investment Trust plc that you bought through
a broker or share shop you ean transfer them into

the Fidelity Investment Trust Share Plan Doing this
allows you to renvest your dividends and make further
investments without having to pay brokerage fees

You will also be able to set up a monthly savings plan
and receive statements and valuations twice a year

Page 54 The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc Annual Report 2008



Investing in The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc

BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF SHARES -
INFORMATION RIGHTS

With effect from 1 October 2007 registered shareholders
of fully listed companies are able to nomemate the
underlying beneficial owners of their shares to receive
information nghts from 1 January 2008 You should
contact your registered sharehoider direct to reguest
to recewve your information nghts Please note that
beneficial owners of shares who have been nominated
by the registered holder of those shares to recaive
information nghts under Section 146 of the Companies
Act 2006 are required to direct all communications to
the registered holder of their shares rather than to the
Company’s Regstrars, Equiniti Limited, or to the
Company direct

INVESTING ONLINE

You can invest online in The Edinburgh Investment
Trust ple shares via www fidelity co uk/sharenetwork
Fideiity ShareNetwork enables you to buy or sell shares
in any lsted company during narmal Londen Stock
Exchange trading hours - between 8am and 4 30pm
any working day Shares in ShareNetwork can either be
held direct or in an 15A, subject to the normal ISA imits
and restricions You will be shown a live price and be
abie to buy or sefl immediately If an order 1s placed
when the market 15 closed, it will be processed as soon
as the market reopens Unlike many online share
dealing services, Fidelity ShareNetwork gives you
personal CREST membership for shares held direct
This means that shares are registered on the CREST
system in your own narme and everything relating to
your shares - dividends, annual reports and so on -
will be sent direct to you and you will be able to attend
and vote at shareholder meetings in your own name
Personal CREST membership does not apply to ISA
hoidings which must be held in the name of the ISA
managers nominee under ISA regulations Fidlehty
ShareNetwork has a very competitive cost structure
Share purchases or sales are executed on line for only
£9 per trade (Stamp duty 1s also payable on purchases
at the rate of 0 5%) There is an account administration
fee of £5 per month, however many different shares
you own and whatever their value

CONTACT INFORMATION
Private investors
call free to 0800 41 41 10, %am to 6pm, 7 days a week

Financial advisers
call free to 0800 41 41 81, 8am to bpm,
Menday to Fnday

www Itseit co uk or
www fidelity co uk/its

Existing shareholders who have a specific query
regarding their holding er need to provide update
information, for example a change of address, should
contact the appropriate administrator

Holders of ordinary shares

Equini Lirmited {formerly Lloyds TSB Registrars),
Regstrars to The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc,
PO Box 28448, Finance House, Orchard Brae,
Edinburgh EH4 TWQ

Telephone 0871 384 2431 (calls to this number are
charged at 8p per minute from a BT landline Other
telephony providers' costs may vary)

www shareview co uk

Share Plan investors

Fidehty Investment Trust Share Plan, Equiniti Limited
(formerly Lloyds TSB Regstrars), PO Box 4605, Aspect
House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex, BN99 &0Y

Telephone 0871 384 2781 {calls to this number are
charged at 8p per minute from a BT landline Other
telephony providers’ costs may vary}

ISA/PEP investars
Fidelity, using the freephone numbers given above,
or by writing to

UK Customer Service, Fidelity investments, Oakhill
House, 130 Tonbrndge Road, Hildenborough,
Tonbridge, Kent TN11 9DZ

General enquiries should be made to Fidelity, the
Investment Manager and Secretary, at Fidelity
Investrments International Investment Trusts, Beech
Gate, Millfield Lane, Lower Kingsweaod, Tadworth,
Surrey KT20 &RP
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KEEPING YOU UPDATED
if you hold The Edinburgh Investment Trust pfc in an 1A or PEP, you will receive a yearly report
detailing all your transactions and the value of your shares Investors with the Fidelity Investment
Trust Share Plan wil! receive statements and valuations twice a year

The share price of The Edinburgh Investment Trust plc appears daily in The Financial Times,
The Times, The Guardian, The Dally Telegraph, The Scotsman and The Herald Price
and performance information s also available at itseit co uk
Investors can abtan the real time share price by phoning FT Cityline on 0906 843 0000,
selecting opuion 2 and entering 2422 (calls charged at 60p per minute on a per second
basis from a BT landline Charges from ather telephony networks may vary)

FURTHER INFORMATION

For application forms or more information about any of the investment options descrnibed here,
please call the Fidelity Investment Trust Line on 0800 41 41 10 and tatk to a
Fidelity customer representative (Jam to 6pm}

Altematwvely, you may like to visit the Fidehty Londen Investor Centre at 25 Cannon Street,
near St Paul's Cathedral

You can alsa find out more by wisiting fidelrity co uk and rtsert co uk or contacting your Financial Adviser

The Fidelity Indwidual Savings Account ('ISA”} 1s offered and managed by Financial Administration Services Limited The Fidelity
Investment Trust Share Plan 1s managed by Fidelity Investmenits International Both companies are autherised and regulated by the
Financial Services Authanty The Fidelity Investment Trust Share Plan is administered by Equinit Lirmited and shares will be held m
the name of Lloyds TSB Registrars Savings Naminees Limited The value of savings and ehigibiity to invest in an ISA will depend on
indnnidual circumstances and ali tax rules may change 1n the future Fidelity investment trusts are managed by Fidelty Investments
International Fidelity only gives information about its awn products and services and does not pravide investment advice based on
ndwidual circumstances Should you wish to seek advice, please contact a Financial Adwiser lssued by Fidelty Investments
internaticnal authonsed and regulated by the Financial Services Autharity

For the purposes of Sections 21 and 25 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, the content of this report has been approved
by Fidelty Investments International

Please note that the value of nvestments and the income from them may fall as well as nse and the investor may not get back the
2mount onginally mvested Past performance 1s not a guide 16 future returns

For funds that imvest In overseas markets, changes in currency exchange rates may affect the value of your mvestment Investing in
small and emerging markets can be more volatle than other more developed markets

Reference in this docurment to specfic secursties should not be construed as a recormmendation to buy or sell these securities but s
included for the purposes of dlustration anly Investors should also note that the views expressed may nc longer be current and may
already have been acted upon by Fidelity

Fidelity Fidelity International and the Pyramid Logo are trademarks of FIL Limited

CB33994/na
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